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Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limiled

Strategic report

The dlrectors present lheir siralegic rspori lor lhe year ended 31 December 2017,

Princlpal actlvities and revisw of the business
Qur vision is that:
‘As the subsea division of CRRC Times Elactric, SMD will be the mos! advanced supp)ler of subsaa

rormodeiy et ﬂlwuuus power and conlf 53
busnasy, snfug o apply Sava to take Frew -romw mu'd‘oflom
an wide range of in ocean, and

The Group has developed a slralegy wilh a five year hosizon which starled in 2016, focused on five main
business groups covering lhe following:

Projacts;

Products;

Services;

China; and

Tachnalogy/Cenlral Functions.

SMDE sirvingy i I achine & wgnifcant grewth in annunl revanue by 2021, by appling vur coro shills lo a

widar group ol markots, pcoduu- mv’mu\swanmos mgrmm ] b mainly arganic. The growth

origirrs o flocused wnd i panmber of sirategic
programmes,

Wa will deliver all of Lhis wilh a foundaticn of strong values which will shape the way we operate and

behave. The Group's key financial performance indlcalors for lhe year were:

2017 2016

£000 £000
Revanue 53,873 21,053
Gross profit 11,957 1,540
Gross profil % 22% 7%
Opoerating profit{loss) 3,212 (8,277)
Operating profi/(loss) margin % 6% {44%)

2017 saw the start of an uptum in a number of markels allhaugh lhe order book conlinued Lo be affected by
changss in our oporsng markels, primatily ofl and gas, Trade also tonlinued fo ba impacted by
government poliey aid sandlions with Russia. Sales effart cantinues with a pickup In acilvity throughout
2017 and inta Q1 2018,

Majar irading evonts of v yoar were:

« Tha ROV Business continuee lo devalop Ils product range, The order inlake conlinued Lo be weak wilh
revenue driven [rom the two cantract wins from late 2016. These contracta also saw the businsss
divarsifying Into diffarand markals Lo altirdati the impac of he depression in the ail and gas market.
New business hirs besn sacured in Q1 2048 and same pickup in sales aclivily is belag seen,

+  Tha Trunching Birsinuas retavornd from the tough tading condilions of 2016 and =i tHe businers
axcand budgeled revetije. Onbet book al e end ol 2017 wits half of that at lhe sl but o number of
significant wina in early 2018 means budgeted revenue for lhis Business is already largely secured

»  Our subsea mining equipment conlract wilh Nautilus Minarals moved into a different phase in 2017
wilh wet test support taking place Ihroughoul the year. Focus conlinues lo support Nautilus lhrough the
posi-delivery support phase.

«  Tha Deck equipmant Businass confimid to support @ oquiment businesses throsgh 2017 and
waorked an ils firsl major ditnct sale which is due to complata arownd mid 2010, Salas saivity conlinues
In this markel.

» The Servicas business dalivered on Its Lradilional revenue streams in 2017. Alongside dellvery, the
ey Fatmad feam wot aboul (ne tuning its stratogy #nd offings to the markel. The Business has a
dwl-fohf Iudgaet for 2010 but has a Mird of ity tarpet alrady securad, & fun mte of cocn sales
ity will add ancihar third of (ha Butkistad revenus ieaving Lhe final thisd to be secued

Spacialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Principal activities and review of the business (continued)

CapHal expenditure

The Group invesfed £1,055,102 of capital expenditure in 2017 (2016 — £1,465,130) Lo support business
growth, which included capitalised product development coals of £642,190.

Taxation

A lax charge of E322,121 (2016 credil of £2,121,698) was incurred against a pre-tax profit of £444,201
(2016 logs of £11,919,642). The Group Is carrying forward these unused losses as a £2,314,455 deferred
lax asset, where managemenl expact (his to be fully utllised agalnsl fulure taxable profits by 2020,

Outlook

Ordar backlog at 31 Decembar 2017 was below ihat of January 2017 however a number of significant
business wins In early 2018 mean lhat approximatsly 60% of 2018 budgsled revenua is already secured
and sales pipeline is strong in masl business areas.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's aclivilies expose il lo a number of financial risks including conlract risk, supplier risk, inlerest
rale rigk, credit risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk, political sk and economic anvironmant risk. The
faclors affacting Lhesa risks are set out below,

Contract risk
The principal conlractual riske Lhe Group facas relale to scops of work and onerous commercial lerms.

The mos! common rlsk in respect of scope of work is related lo the complexily of the contracl and hence
lhe risk thal lhe ime and malerials required lo complete the contract may be underestimaled, leading to a
loss belng recorded. This is miligatad by camying oul a comprehensive scoping exercise, as wall as
ongoing updates, al the time of enquiry, tender, negotiation and award. Thereafier, detaited lime and cost
budgsls are prepared and regular revisws are performed over (he life of lhe conlract lo provide revised
lorecasts of expected prafil Furlher risks /amain In ralation lo (he fallure of personnel to adhere to
aslablished procedures. Ongoing business improvement aclivilies have focused on lhis area and langible
Improvemenis have resulted,

Conlract risk is mitigaled, where possibia, lhiough Lhe applicalion of the Group’s own larms and condilions
Variations to thesa standard terms such as liquidaled damages, cansequental loss or acceptance of
carain customer terms and condiions are referred to lha Group's senlor management before accepling or
declining a conlract. We aim lo furlher mitigale commerclal risk by passing hrough to our suppller base the
head contract terms. Conlract risks include thase relating to limiled warranties given to customers
conceming the performance of systems supplled. These risks are mitigaled by an exiensive quality conlral
process at every stags of (he dasign and manufaciuring process.

Supplier risk

The Group relies on Iha performanca of suppliers and sub- for parts,

syslams. There is a risk Lhal suppliers or subcontractors do nol perform to the: requlmd standard These
risks are miligaled by carefully selecting and then moniloring all suppliers.

Interast rate risk

The Group invests surplus cash In fiaading rita intorast bemwing depowla so the Griup's interest income is
¢Ml¢¢ by chadges in inlanant méne. This Groug's funding Kinichune s in the foiam of faed rale loan rotys

and] dn gvardeafl Th Groug has lesinricaby usad kvsrest rate swaps Lo control inleresl rate exposures but
there were no swaps in place al lhe year end

Cradit risk

The Group's princlpal financlal assets are cash and trade and ather receivables.

The Group's credil risk Is primarily lo ls trade i and amounls on
contracls. Before exlending credit, the risk (hal the other party wiil default on payment Is assessed and
spscial paymanl larms such as paymant before dellvery may be imposed in extreme cases The amounts
presented in the balance sheel for recelvables are nel of allowances lor doublful recovery.

The credit risk on liguid funds placed on deposit is limiled because the hanks are counterpariias wilh high
credit ralings assigned by inlemaional credit raling agencles.




Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's aclivilies exposa il Lo he financial risks of changes in loreign curency exchange rates. The
Group's overriding objeclive Is ta avold speculaling on forelgn currency movemenls, whelher by aclively
Irading in curency Inslrumants or by lalling (o lake avaiiahle courses of aclion lo prolect againgd jale
movements.

Where an individual conlract involvas balh receipts and payments in lhe same foreign cumency a ‘natural
hedgs' occurs lo the exlent that the currency risks on lhe separale lows can be offsal

Any msidual forelgn currency inflow or autflow in excess of (ha amounts subject 1o |he nalural hedge, and
all olher foraign currency receipts and payments above a de minimla limii, are assessed on a case by case
basis where:

a) ifa nalural hedga can be used elsewhera in the Group, such as on the sale of spare parts or
suppord serwcss. i will dn so, ulnemlse

b) Lhey will be of a foreign exch contract which have tha effact of
fixing Lhe rate al which lha relavant amounls will ba converted (o or from slerling,

Liquidity risk

Hislarically, In order lo mainlain liguidity to ensure lhat sufficiant funds were available for ongoing

operations and fulurs dEvaInpmanls the Group nﬂrafully managed ¢ the cash generaled by ils operations.
ollewing Ihe day lo day ol cash quidity risk is signi reduced as

SHBMS access, if raquired, to ms facilldes of Ils pamnt comparyy.

Polltical risk

As a company operaling in a range of markels SMD is exposed to political fisk from tima lo tima. Such risks
are managed through Lhe Group’s commarcial risk management process on a case by case basis. Racenl
sancllons with Russia resulled in Ihe rejaclion of an export licence which significantly impacled the Group's
Bvanue.

Econanlc saviranment rsk

SMD operales In mulliple markels worldwide with a partfolio of clients and lechnical solulions that means
the Group can withsland slowdowns In any of ils markets, The current depression in lhe ail and gas market
has had a significanl and on-going efflect on revenue and margin. A number of sirateglc aclions are in place
1o reduce (he reliance on particular markals In fulurs,

By order of the Board

0 H Howai_

Richard Howarth
Secrslary
24" Seplsmber 2018

Specialist Machine Developmenls (SMD) Limited

Reglstered No. 06533623
Directors’ report

The diractors presant their report and financial statements for tha year ended 31 Dacember 2017,

Results and dividends

The lotal profil for the year after laxation amounled lo £122,080 (2016 - losa of £9,797,944). Tha directors
do nol recommend a final dividend (2016 ~ Enil).

Going concern

The direclors have prepared the financial slalements on a going concem basis on the grounds thal lhe
Group expects lo meet [ts llabllitles as lhey fall due, The diractors have reached this concluslon afler
underiaklng a datailed raview of lhe Group's trading and cash flow forecasls and the fAnancial faclities
expacled lo be available to the Group from ils investors, bankars and other stakeholders, For further detail,
pleasa see Nole 2.

Research and development

The Group has a dedicated R&D funclion which is underpinned by a long term strategy la ensure that
constantly changing market demands acrose all businass sireams are met by appropriate producl
of the lalasl jies and ongoing i ion and research.

Hlsmncally. the majority of lhe Group's innovalive developmanls have baen an Integral element of
conlracts. In such cit lhe costs are nol easily |dsnul‘ahls Mors ra\:enuy,

a greater focus has been placed on intemally funded as a means of

advantaga by anlicipating future customer needs and markat Irands.

Disabled employees

The Group gives full i 7 for from disabled persons whers the
candidate’s particular aplnudas end Sblll"BS are it wilh meeting tha of the
job. Opporiunilles are avallable to disabled employees for training, career development and promotion
Where exisling employees become disabled, il is the Group's policy la provide continulng employment
wheraver praclicable in the same or an attemalive position and le provide approprials lraining ta achieve
Ihis aim,

Employee involvement

The Group upemles a for employas i jion and ion which complies wilh Lhe

of thy lion and C ion of ions 2004, During the year, lhe
pollcy of pmvldmg empluyees with Information about the Group has been continuad through lhe newsletter
‘ROView' in which employees have also been sncouraged lo present thelr suggeslions and views on the
Gr«ﬁ ‘s parfarmancy. Regular meelings are held between locel management and employees to allow a
frao flaw of informution and ideas.

Future developments

The Group will conlinue lo work closely with cuslomers in 2018 praviding bolh technical and fnancial
solutlons. Desptte the difficull trading environment, the Group has been able to secura a aumber of large
arders in H1 and moves into H2 with a strong pipelina of appartunities. Tha Group will continue la invesl in
R&D, which underpins lhe fong larm strategy, and will increass inlagralion wilh its Chinese parenl to use
lhus as a platform to gain greater access to the Far Easl Asian markel

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Directars

Thi ditncton who served th Groug mnnn tha year and up lo the dale of approval of the Reporl and
Financlel Slalemenls war a8

MT Jonis

A H Hewanh

J Chen (appointed 7 July 2017)

D Zhu

XLi

H Zhang (appointed 13 June 2018)
A Hodgson (resignad 24 Oclober 2017)
J Dong (reslgned 1 July 2017)

W Wang (vasignad 7 July 2017)

Disclosure of informatlon to the auditors

So far as each person who was a direclor at lhe data of appraving this report Is aware, Lhere is no relevant
audit information, being information needed by the auditor in conneclion with prepering ils repor, of which
the auditor is unewars, Having made enquiries of fatlow direclors and the Group's audilor, each director
has laken all the sleps lhat he/she is obligad Lo lake as a director In order lo make himsellherself aware of
any ralevan| audit informallon and to eslablish thal the auditor is aware of lhat informalion

Auditors
A resolution to reappolnt Ernsl & Yaung LLP as auditors will be put lo the members &l lhe Annual General
Maaling

By order of the Board

/)H//»*&L,

Richard Howarth
Secretary
24" Sgptember 2018

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Statement of directors' responsibilities

The direclors are rssponsihls for preparing the Stralsgic Report, the Directors' Report and the financlal
in will G Yaw )

Camgpary o roguires the directors io prepane fnanclal stitemients for each ﬁnanclal yuar. Under that law
fhe dvaciions have elechad to prepare (ne Bnancial in Financlal
Repoing Standards (IFAS) as edopled by the Eurtipaan Unlon. umrcompany law tha ditictors musl nol

tha financlal atatnrments unleas (hey aro sutislied lhal lhey give a true and fair view of Lhe slate of
affalre and the profil or loss of the Company and Group for thal period. In preparing these inanclal
statemenls, the direclors ara raquirad (o;

= select suitable accounting policles and Lhan apply tham conslstently;
®  maka judgmenls and eslimates that are reasonable and prudent;

*  stale whathar applicable Internutianal Financial Refading Standarids, as adopted try the
Europaian Unlan, have been faliewsid sublect to any matnetal dogartures disclossd and explained
In Ihe financial statemenls;

*  provide additional disclosures when compllance with the specific requirements in IFRSs Is
Insuffichnt Lo enably usors lo understand the impact of a pasticular ransaction, other events and
condilions on the Griup’s financlal pusitien and financlal perfarmance.

*  prepare the linanclal statements on the going coiee=n basis unless il Is inappropriate lo presume
Ihal the Campany and Group will continue in tursinass,

The directors are responeible for keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient lo show and
axplain the Company's and Group's transactions and disclose wilh reasanable accuracy al any time the
financial posilion af Ihe Company and Group and enable them to ensure thal the financlal statements
comply wilh Lhe Companies Acl 2006, Thay are also responsibie for safeguarding lhe assata of the

and Group and hance for laking reasonable sleps for lhe prevention and deteclion of fraud and
oihi rmegularies.




Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Opinion
In our opinion:

+  Specialis] Machine Developmenls {SMD) Limited's group financial slalements and parenl company
tinancial slalements {the “financial slalements”) give a irue and fair view of tha stale of lhe group's and
of Ihe parent company's alfairs as at 31 December 2017 and of the group's profil for lhe year lhen
ended;

»  lhe group financial statemenls have been properly prepared in accordance wilh IFRSs as adopled by
Ihe European Union;

»  lhe parenl company financial slalements have been properly prepared n accardance with Unilad
Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounling Praclice, and

+  Ihe financial slalemenls have been prepared in accordance wilh he requirements of the Companies
Act 2008

We have audiled lhe financial slalemenis of Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limiled which
comprise:

Ewn Parent company

Ci of ive Income for
iy w:t than ended

Cnnsolldaled balance sneel as al 31 Dacember 2017 | Company balance sheel as al 31 December 2017

Consolidaled slalemenl of changes in equity for he Company slalemenl of changes in equily for lhe year
year then ended then ended

Consolidated slalemenl of cash flows for Lhe year Company slatement of cash flows for lhe yaar lhen
then ended ended

Related noles 1 lo 27 to lhe financial slalemenls, Relaled noles 1 1o 27 Lo Ihe financial stalemenis
including a summary of significant accounting including a summary of significant accounling
palicies policies

The financial reporling framework thal has been applied in Lhe preparalion of the group financlal stalements
is applicable law and Inlernalional Financial Reporling Slandards (IFRSs) as adoplad by lhe European
Union. The financial reporting framework (hat has been applied in Iha praparalion of tha parenl company
financial slalements is applicable law and Uniled Kingdom Accounling Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepled Accounling Practice)

Basis for oplnion
We our audit in wilh i on Audiling (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and

i law. Qur ililies under lhose are further in the Audilor's
responeyities for the auiil of thi Biunsil slalemenls Locticn of olr pon w WWa are ingepandent of
Lhe ot And paten| comgany in accondance wilh the @lhieal requirements that aie rafevant b our audit of
Ihe finmnciol stilemants in the UK ndmﬁq (he FRC's Fthical Slandard as apphed to listed entites, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical in with lhese i
We believe thal the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our
opinion

Conclusions relating to golng concern

We have nolhing to report in raspecl of Ihe lallowing mallers in relalion to which lhe ISAs (UK) require us lo
reporl lo you where:

= ihe duclon’ uae 6l Me going of in lhe of the financial
»  slalemants i not applopimi; of .
*  this dieson havy nid disclased in i Enancial matesial that

may caat significant doublt aboul the group's of the pasent company s ability (o conlinue (o adopl the
gekng concem bwsls of astounting for a porked of atloost twiive monis from i dale whei thy
financiol staleinents sre sulhonsed for lssue

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Specialist Machine Developments (SMD} Limited (continued)

Ovarvisw of our audit ach
Key audil Wt hivvn idondifnd the lolioving Ky sudit motiers, which wate of mosl significance
mallers lo our audil Signilicant risks:
*  IINMOROE fEVOr (0Cegndon
= Accounling for invenlory
- i of goodwill
Audit scope = Wa performed an audit of lhe complel.e financial information of Speciahsl
Machine D (SMD) Limiles
*  Woe perlormed an audil of the complele financial infarmalion of 3 components
and raview on a {urther 2 in relalion io the Group
financial stalemenls
= The where we Tull audil for 97%
ol Revenus and 150% of Profil Before Tax |
s Cvarall group 4! L0-40,000 which iapressis 1% of reveniue

Key audit matters

Key audit matiers are those mallers (hal, in our professional judgmenl, were of mosl significance in our
audil of Lhe financial slatements of Ihe curren| period and include he most significanl assessed risks of
malerial misstatemenl (whether or nol dus o (raud) Ihat we idenlfied These matters included Ihose which
had lhe greales! effect on: Ihe overall audil siralegy, Ihe allocalion of rescurces in lhe audil; and direcling
lhe efforts of Ine engagement leam. Thase mallers were addressed in lhe conlex| of aur audil of the
financial slalemenls as a whole, and in our opinion therean, and we do nol provide a separate opinion on
these mallers

| Dur respaana i6 the riek “Key obsarvations
mwﬂum to tha Board of
Improper revenue ‘We a gh ol | Based on Ihe procedures

Contract revenue

|AS 11 Construction Contracts
provides on the

the revenue Iransaclions for bolh
revenue sireams and assessed
he design and implementalion

allocation of contract revenue
and canlracl costs lo accounting
periods in which construction
work is performed.

Revenue is recognised on a
conlract by coniracl basis using
a percenlage complelion melhod
ol contract aclivity where the
outcome of Ihe canslruclion
canirat] can e eslimabed
rolably, stharwize mvanie
focognised only to lhe exlenl of
recoverable contracl costs
incurred. This percenlage
complelion is based on
managemenl's assessmenl of
tha slage ol complelion on Lhe
individual conlracts This
requires management (o
calculale cosls incurred lo dale
and forecasl costs lo complele
for each contract Assessing
cosls lo complete is highly
judgmental and involves key
assumplions over fulure evenls
| 4 e mada, Thie abest eabmatnd
outcome must conlinually be
assessed to ensure Ihat
management are conslanlly
predicling what lhe lales|
| poaicn well ba

of key controls

We have gained an
understanding of Irading terms
and candillons with key
cuslomers, We have lesled the
applicatian of Ihese lerms
through aur sample fesling of
conlracls

For conlracl revenue, we have
revisiled contract performance
assessmenls and slage of
campletion al the year end and
compared 10 post year end
uthuire. Wire teio has besn
a significanl change in judgmenl.
Ihis has been reflecled back into
the financial slalemenis for (he
year anded 31 December 2017

We held review and challenge
meelings wilth key operalional
and finance personne including
projecl managers lo discuss a
sample of individual conlracls

periormed, we did nol ideniity
any evidence of material
misatnlarmanl in he rovenue
recognised in lhe year ended 31
December 2017

a!

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited (continued)

Nom s

tract revenue, we

IAS 18 Revenoe stales thol
i Wom the swie of quedn
shall be focogalied whan

hos Bban a franske 1o m- ladfpar
alme - sl
reviards of awnership of lhe
goods

The timing of when revenue is
recognised is relevant lo the
Graup performance,

There are a number of customer
arrangements in place at 31
December 2017, which have
differenl poinls when lhe risks
and rewards of ownership are
transfered lo the cuslomer.

There is opporiunily Lthrough
managemenl override or aror to
recognise revenue ahead of
lransfer of risks and rewards of
the Goods 1o 1 Cuttomer
andier nrisstatn alistation of
revenus betwesn periods The
liming of revenue racognilion,
including around year end, is a
significanl focus area of audil

Consolidaled group revenue Is
E53,872,616 (2018
£21,052,798)

Accounting for inventory

1A8 2 Inventorfes slales Lhat the
cosl of invenlories shall
comprise ali cosls of purchase,
cosls af comnaraion and plhir
oosls inciumd in binging tha
invenlories 1o Lheir present
localion and condition and (hal
inventory should be carmied at
B dorwer of coat of s nit
realisable valve

Given the cutrent poor markel
trading condilions, (he risk is lhat
surplus inventory is held al
higher than ils ultimate net
realisable value

Invenlory carrying value af
£7,806 647 (2016: £8,818 946)

For

lesled tha compleleness and
accuracy of revenus by
performing sample lesling from
salgs orders lo sales invoice lo
ensure revenue recognition is
appropriale

To further address he risk of
managemenl ovamds in
revenua, we examined a sample
of manual journal enlries (hat
were posted (o revenua
accaunts. These manual
adjustmenls which impact
revenus, including Lhe credit
O PIOVELGNS, Wels
substantively lested,

We (ested a sample of
significant receivable balances
10 cash recelpls (o confirm
recoverability post year end,

We performed lesls on sales
Iransactions posted near lo lhe
yead and 1o oisue 10a1 cul oft
correclly applied.

We conclude thal revenue has
basn racognised in accardance
with lhe requiremants of IAS 18
Revenue and here are no
rmilarict cut off arore 9
indicalers of fraudulant reporiing

We allended a stock count al he

year end to physically verily a
sampla of invenlory on hand io
verify ils exislence

| We have performed cos! lesling

an a sample of inventory held at
year end to validate thal il is not
held al higher than lhe amounls
spenl lo acquira it

W have revagaved tha
methodology far calculaling he
slow moving stock provision,
including a review of ils clerical
accuracy as well as considering
1he aging on which Lhe provision
calculalion is applied

We have performed a post year
vt et roakaibin valua roview
on a sample of invenlory items
which have been sold
subsequenl lo lhe year end.

We have challenged
managemant on their forecast
ulhsation of a sample of
inventory ilems, including
expectalions for the sale of part
buill equipmenl, We have
compared forecasl sales prices
10 hisloric prices achieved on
sales of similar items in recent
years

The melhodology for accounling
for a slow maving stock
provision is cansistenl wilh lhe
melhodology applied in lhe
previous year.

Based on {he procedures
performed, we did not idenlify
any evidence of malerial
missialement in relalion lo
invenlary as al 31 December
2017,

Wa conclude thal inventory has
been recognised in accordance
wilh the requirsments of IAS 2
fnveniories

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

IAS 36 Impairment of Assels
raquires thal goadwill should be
Lesled annuaily for impairment,
wilh an impairment arising when
Lhe recoverable amount af lhe
cash generaling unil (CGU) is
less than Lhe carrying value of
Ihe CGU,

Value in use (ViU) calculalions.
are used lo delarmine lhe
recoverable amoun of the CGU.

SMD must include various
forecasts and judgmenls inlo ils
assessment of the ViU ofils
group, which if misstaled contd
gnie rlas Lo an unrecognised
wmpacmend. The ky
assurngiiong fod 1he Vil
calvutalion inchudy e forecast
revenue growth, expecled
EBITDA margins and lhe
discounl rate applled Ihereon
Geodwill carrying value
£44,570,014 (2016:
£44,970,014)

The grosio cairion ool itk aroani

Imgmirmant best as Al 31
Oecember each year, concurrent
wilh the financial year end

We cansidered lhe group's
assessment of ils CGU lo
conlirm Lhat lasling goodwill for
impairmenl purposes is allocated
to Ihe lowesl level of CGU at
which managemenl monitor
goodwill,

Wa reviewed he discounl rale
used in the goodwill Impairmen|
model and engaged wilh
valuations specialisls lo
benchmark the risk premiums
used in |he weighted average
cos! of capital (WACC) lo
comparatles in Ihe same
indusiry.

We challenged management's
forecasl fulure cash flows used
in their impairment review
discounled cash flow model by
refarence o halorie ienults and
also our underslanding of the
lales! order pipeline and future
slralegy of the graup

We applied various sensilivity
analyses lo management's
lorecasls lo slress lesl lhe
goodwill impairment model

‘@lferent dhvisiont Btivity. the

We conlinmsd Lhat Ine enlire
group i kidgud o be o sngle
opereting segmiil and whiil
revenues arg manilored by

base of assels freem which he
deriabonial cash fows are
generaled are all common and
there is no reporiing of assels by
divislon,

The weighled average cost af
capital (WACC) used in lhe
goudwill impairment model is in
line with our expected range

Wi natod ihal the rovanue
grawth targels and EBITDA
margins used in Ihe goodwill
impaimmenl model appeared (o
be al lhe aptimislic end of a
raasonable ranges when
compared lo pasl resulls, albel
Iha forecasts used in lhe
goadwill impairmenl model are
consisient wilh managemenl's
consideralion of lhe nalure of the
markels in which il operales, lhe
expecled growlh of lhese
markels and the abilily of lhe
group Lo exploil the opportunilles.
wilhin lhase markels, wilh
iedatmrics b the &
economic climate

No impairmenl loss arisas for the
year ended 31 December 2017,
using management's base
assumplions, allhough we noted
(hal management’s forecasls
appeared 1o he relalively
ambitious

Our review of sensitivilies noled
Ut W VLD eadeulation bs s
sensifive lo revenue growth and
EBITDA % assumptions. If all
key assumplions were lo change
unfavourably in combinalion,

Pve nsalo o
future impairment of goodwill
These sensilivities, along wilh
their impact have been disclosed
in Nole 14

‘Wi aro sadshed that there s no
impairment of goodwill at 31
December 2017.




Independent auditor’s report to the members of |
Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited (continued)

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scopa

Our agsassmant of audil riak, our svelualien of matariglily and our allacallon of perfarmanco materiatity
delermine our audil scope lor each enlily within the Group, Takan logsther, Lhis enables us {o farm an
opinion an |he consolidaled financial stalemenls We lake inlo accounl size, risk profila, the arganisalion of
the group and effectiveness of group-wids conlrols, changes in the business environment and alher laclors
when assessing Lhe level of work to be parformed al each entity

2017 2016
Numter % Groip % Group Number % Group % Graup
PBT Revere PBT Revenue
Reparting
componenls
Full scope b 160% 97% 3 97% 95%
Review scope 2 {50%) 3% 2 % 5%
Tolal reporling ] 100% 100% L] 100% 100%
components

In assessing (he risk of malenal misslatement {e the Group financial slalements, and to ensure we had
adequale quanlialive coverage of significanl accounls in the financial stalements, of Lhe 5 raporiing
components of lhe Group, we selecled 3 componenls enlilies wilhin (he Uniled Kingdom, which represenl
(he principal business unl(s within (he Group.

We performed an audit of Ihe complets financial jon of all 3 ('full scope ")
which were selecied based on their size or risk characlerislics. The remaining 2 enlities were subject lo
review acope pracedures, which included analylical review procedures based on an asalgned \asiing
threshold as a sub-division of our maleriality based on relative size and risk profile of each companenl

There were no changes in scope from the prior year and all group audit work continued to be performed by
the UK audil leam

Our application of materiality

We apply the concepl of tality in planning and ing the audi, in ing Lhe effect of
idenlified misstalemanis on Ihe audil and n farming our audil opinion

Matariality

The magnitude of en omission or mi thal, indivic orin the could be
expecled lo influence the economic decisions of the users of the financiat stalements. Matenality provides a
Dbasis for determining the nelure and exlent of our audil procedures.

We determined materialily for (he Group lo be £540,000 (2018: £350,000), which is 1% (2016: 2%} of
group revenue. We believe thal revenue provides us wilh the besl indicalion of the Jevel of activity and is
currently the most relevani performance measure to the sfakeholders of he Group

During the course of our audil, we reassessed inilial maleriality and have revised this {o reflect final audited
resuils, ralher Lhan basing on forecasts

Performance materiality
The application of materiaily al the individual account or balance fevei. il is set at an amount lo reduce lo
an appropniately low lovel iha ity thal ihe of wrd
exceeds malenality.
On lhe basis olour risk sssessmenls togelher wilh our assessmenl of lhe Group's overall control
was lhat was S0% (2016: 50%) of aur planning
malerialily, namely E270,000 (2015 £1 74,000). We have sel al Ihis
which reflecls our expeclation of the level of audil differences based on the priar year,

Reporting threshoid
An amount below which identified missiatements are considered as being clearly trivial
Wi ageasid with this Board of Disectors thal we wausd repon to them all ccrected audit dvﬂerences in

oagess of E27.000 2OV7: £17 000), which s set at 5% of plasning as el as
Uaid hweradnosicl . 6 our vewe, wistantod reposting on qualitdtve grds

We evaluale any uncorrecled misslalemenls agams! bom Ihe quanlllallve measures of materiality
abavs and in lighl of other relevant in forming our opinion

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited (continued)

Other information

The other informalion comprises Ihe informalian included in he sirategic report set oul on page 2, other
than Ihe financial statemenis and our audilor's report thereon  The direclors are responsible for the olher
infarmation

Sur opinion on (he B SIS Goes 0] coet T slier ilbemalion and, excapl to Ihe eatenl
olherwise expliciily staled in this report, we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion therean

In conneclion with our audil of the financial stalemenls, our responsibilily is (o read the olher informalion
and, in doing so, consider whelher the olher information is malerially inconsislenl wilh Ihe financial
statementa or our knowledge oblained in the audit or otherwise appears lo be malerially misstated. If we
whanidy yoch apparent we fia iquired (0 delemine
‘whother 1o 3 & milurial misstatemed in hir irancisl iiboments or o madarsl mastatisment of the ather
Enferynation, I, baed o e work we bave perfomed, we conclude ihat there s & makerral sisstistiemant of
the other information, we are requlred lo repor Ihat fact

We have nolhing lo report in lhis regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on lhe work undertaken in Lhe course of he audil

= ihe nkmaton RVOR Wy Tie sdrabegis ropard and e ocio’ rmpon for M Bnencal yaar o whict ihe
Fnanciat arg propared is cornsk with tha linancial and

= siralegle repodt and direcions’ reped have beet with appli legal
TN

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In (ha Fight of the knawlasdpe and underslanding of the group and lhe parent campany and is anviegninent
oblained in the coure of the audit, we have nal identified malerial misstsemgnis in lhe siratoghs repo or
the @uwelors’ repswt

We have nolhing lo report in respecl af {he following malters in relalion to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to repoil to you il, in aur opinion:

*  adequatir #teounling records have nol bean kepi by the pamnl company, or relurns adequate far our
audil have el been recsived ram branches nol visiles by w; or

« the parent company financial are nol in with lhe records and relurns.
or

* certain disclosures of direclors’ rEmunsrallun specified by law ara nol made; or

* o hin nof roceived Al thirk gt 1or oor mdd

Responsibilities of directors

A3 explained riove fully in the statormant of diecon” respomsituises 36t out &0 page 7, the daecions e
roapansitin for 1he prepivation of the financal stabirmons ard for Being satiafied that give o kue and tir
i, and for such inlemal contil as Mo trocion i b enabio | of
finarcisl Malomonts ihat ace frea frem malorial risstalamand, hathier dun o tracd or e

In preparing Lhe financial slalements, the directors are responslble for assessing Ihe group and parenl

company's ability to conlinue x4 & g matiiers relaind 1
cancarn and using (he going cunr.qm skt nlaccnml’m] umnl Iha direclors mithar intnnd fo liquidate the
fptei @4 1he parenl company of 1o GaRsa of: bt o de 8o

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objeclives are to oblain aboul whether the linancial slatemenls as a whole are
free Trom malerial misslalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audilor's report (nal includes
our opinion R is a high level of butis nol a Ihal an audil
conducled In accordance with ISAs (UK) will always delecl a malerial mlssla|emenl when il exists
Misslatements can arise from fraid or error and are material if, of in the

they could reasonably kit sapecin (o inNuence lhe exenimis dicisions of users laken on the basis of
these financial slalemenls

A further descriplion of our responsibililies for the audit of the financial stalements 1s localed on lhe

Financial Reporting Council's website al htlps: s, fes g ki This
forms part of our auditor's repor

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Specialist Machine Developments {SMD) Limited {¢ontinued)

Use of our report

This reporl is mage solsly lo lhe company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapler 3 of Parl 18
of Ihe Companies Acl 2006. Our audil work has been underiaken so that we might slats lo lhe company's
members-thoee frratiess wa 3 regured 10 stala fo them in an auditor's report and fie An ntteer purpase. To
the fullest exteni patmilied ty [, wa da nol accept or assume responsibility lo anyane athar Ihgn_ the
company and lhe company's members as a body, for our audit work, for 1his repori, or for Ine opinions we
have formad.

st & Jourg K47

Sandra Thompson (Senior statulory audilor)
for and on behalf of Ernsl & Young LLP, Slalutory Audilor
Newcaslle upon Tyne

25 Seplember2018

Notes:

1 The malntetiance and inlegrily of lhe Specialist Machine Drverlogimants (EHE0] Lim|led wab aile is.
the responsibility of the direclors; the wark carried oul by The suditors doas nol Invali considatsiion
of these mallers and, accordingly, the auditors accepl no responsibility for any changes lhat may
have occurred to Ihe financial statements since Lhey were initially presenled on (he web sile.

2 Legistalion in lhe United Kingdom the and of financial
statements may differ from legislalion in olher jurisdiclions.
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Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017
aomr 2016
fto L4 £
Revenue 5 53,872,616 21,062,798
Cost of sales (41.016.,000)  (10,513,00)
Gross profit 11,958,818 1,539,703
Adminlslralion sxpenses (11,494,757)  {13,016,706)
Olher aperaling income 6 2,750,000 2,200,000
Operating profit{loss) 6 3,211,859 (8,277,003)
Financa (ncome 9 641 1827
Finance cosls 10 {2,768,290) 2,644,266)
Profit/{loss) before tax 444201 (11,919,842)
Tax {charge)cradit n (322,121) 2,121,898
Profit/{loss) for the year 122,080  (9,797.944)
Othar iva income to be to profit or loss in
subsequent periods {net of tax):
Gumulalive lranslelion differences {27,381) 73,313
Total comprshansive Incomel(lass) for tha year OLO0 (0724800
All amounts relate to conlinulng activiles
15



Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Consolidated balance sheet
at 31 December 2017

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016 Share Share Retained Foreign Tolal equity
Noto £ £ capilal premium  earmngs  iranstalion
reserves
Assels E £ &
- ts
::1" ::y"sll‘alntiadl uipmenl 12 3,027,268 4,173,724 Balance at 1 January 2018 44,048,325 689 (37.007,780) (4.998) 6,946,236
|V|lap ibllspsssals * 13 46,768,431 46,283,096 Loss for the year - - (9,797,944) - (9.797.944)
um".gynmu in Joint verilums 15 103,131 Other comprehensive income for the 73,313 73,312
penivabiss year — et
rmr::;ﬂ Shi :? 2 ;:'g?g 1;:‘;;22(: Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (E7Oro4d) 73313 (0724601}
Dalémd tax aesots BTS2ttt Balance at 31 December 2016 and o (078305
081410 5900762 1 January 2017 3046325 689 (46,805,724) 89315  (2.776.39)
ki Profitfor the year . - 122,080 - 122,080
Invanlories 7 7,806,847 6,818,948 Olhar comprehensive loss for the year - - - {27,381 f27.381)
Trada and olher recelvables 18 31,576,333 17,089,285 Tolal comprehensive incame for the year = - T 122,080 [ZT.SBI! K
Cash and cash equivalents 19 . T80 1AW Balance at 31 Dacember 2017 44,040,328 583 (40.773844) ADAMA  (2,603096)
10.300
Total assels ) BEZ.T61
Llabllltles - .
il statement of changes in equit
Barowings 21 €0,000000 60,034,046 Company 9 quity
Other financial liabillies 16 - 8,167 for the year ended 31 December 2017
Provisions 22 507,024 869,315
CGurrent lablliti 0507024 09520 Share capital Share promium  Retainad  Tofal aquity
urrent lal a8 aarnings
Borrawings 21 15,476,740 12,964,570 r IS 5 £
Othar financlal llabllities 18 - 268,432
A 2 855.601 95,171 Balance at 1 January 2016 44,048,325 689 (469,340) 4357987
Trade and other payables 20 20,219,277 8,848,244 Loss for the year - - (4,730,439} (4.739,733)
Current [ncome lax liabilities 245,747 umm ;1 153{:::;;‘2:11?““““ 2018 and e i S ROT] SENSH1
G0 Bd.461 15 - - 761,618 761,616
Total liabllitles B3.461,158 Profil for lhe year - K f
E:;zy i Balance al 31 2017 44,048,325 a0 {4.447.457)  39A01.557
Shara caplial b5 § 44,048,325 44,048,325
Share premium 23 689 689
Ratalned eamings (46,773,644)  (46,895,724)
Forsign lranslallon reserve 23 4098 88,315
Total sharaholders’ defleit #,B83.608] . 778,365)
Total equity and llabllitles 94,620,773 80,882,761
The financial slatamanis ware approved by Ihe Board of Directors on 24* Septembar 2018 and signed on
its behalf by
/O ot
Richard Howarth
Directar
o - 18 18

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2017

Aseels

Deferred (ax assats

Current asseala

Trade and other racelvables
Total assets

Liabllives

Non-current llabilitles
Borrowings

Current liabllitles
Barrowings

Trade and other payablas

Total llabililles

Equlty

Share capilal

Share pramium

Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ eqully
Total equity and llabtlitles

e
'y

99,500,000
81,457
98,561,457
15,462,794
115,044,251
60,000,000

15,442,684

2016

99,500,000

99,500,000

2,354,893
101,854,893

60,000,000

2,400,000
914,05

44,048,325
80
{4.447,457)
39,601,557

115,044,251

44,048,325
a8
(5,209,073)

38,839,041 _
101,854,803

Parmilled by seclion 404 of the Companies Act 2006, no Income slatemenl has been presenled for lhe
Company. The profit for the year recognised by lha Company was £761,616 (2016 — (oss of £4,739,733)

The financial stalamenls were approved by lhe Board of Direclors on 24" September 2018 and signad on

ila behalf by

Q W Hasem

Richard Howarth
Diractar

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2017

Operating activitios
Profiti{loss) bafore tax
Adjusiments (o reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to nel cash flaws:
Depreciation and Impalrment of property, plant and equipmant
Amortisation and Impalmment of Inlangible assels
Impalrment of invesiments
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance income
Finance cosls
Mrwamant in athar fnancal Knbilites
Movement In provislans
Warking capilal adjusiments:
I In irada b
Decrease/(Increase) in inventores
increase/(decrease) in trade payablas

Inlarast recaived

Interest paid

Income tax pald

Net cash flows used In operaling activitles
Investing activities

Disposal of Investmenis

Purchase of proparty, plant and equipmant
Purchase of inlangible assels

Net cash flows used In Invesiing aclivitles
Financlng activities

Drawdown of bank foan

Capilal element of hire purchase repayments
Nol cash fows used in financing activities
Nel Increasef(decrease) In cash and cash equivalenls
Caeh and cash equivalenls at baginning of yaar
Net forelgn exchange differance

Cash and cash equivalents af end of year

Nolte

12
13
16

10
16

12
13

19

2017 2016
s £

444201 (11,919,642)

486,260 476,549
18,508 341,338

E 96,371
11,247 125,218
(641) (1627
2,768,299 2,644,266
(294,599) 294,599
398,219 (300,331)
(14,384,527) 2,881,309
1,009,870 (290,076)

1 7
2045232 (6.553,398)
841 1,627
(2,719,349) (437,170)

(459,78)

(1193254 _(6.085.041)_

103,129 -
(251,198) (520,808)
(000904)  [B44.324)
El.i‘ﬂi !I.‘B&.IE}

13,000,000
_(53.575) (53,575)
TRAT (50575
10,861,198 (8,507,646)
(8,669,114) {201,977)
_ (ismo4  domm
276300 (B.6B114)

Cash and cash eguivalenls at 31 December 2016 includes a bank averdrafl of £10,537,252. During the
year the ovardrafl was replaced with a bank loan, which is nol included in cash and cash equivalenis at 31

December 2017,




Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

-

Company statement of cash flows
for the year anded 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Nofe r 3
Oparating aclivilles
Prafit/{lass) balare lax 749,492 {4,739,733)
Ad|usimenls lo reconcile profil before lax lo net cash Nlows:
Impalment of invesiments - 1,230,468
Finance costs 2,442,694 2,400,000
Working capital adjustments:
in rade i (13,177,234) 1,313,101
Decrease in trade payables {614,952) -
(10,800,000) 203,836
Interest paid {2,400,000) (203,836)
Het zash flows used In operating activitles 112,000,000 .
Drawdown of borrowings 13,000,000 -
Net cash flows used In financing actlvities 13,000,000 -
Nat canh and canl = =
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -
Cash and cash egulvalents at end of year 19 - -

=

Specialist Machine Developmenls (SMD} Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year anded 31 December 2017

Genaral Infarmation

The consolldated and separale financial stalemanls of Spectallst Machine Developmenis (SMD) Limited
(the *Company") and Its subsldlarles {collaclively, the "Graup") for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
aulhorised for Issue in accordance wilh a resolution of lhe diraclors on 24™ Saptember 2018, Specialist
Machine Davelopments {SMD) Limited is a private company limitad by shares, incarporaled and domiciled
in the Uniled Kingdom with the reglstered office al Turblnia Works, Davy Bank, Wallsend, Tyne and Wear.

The Group Is princlpally engaged In Lhe and of subsea remole operaled vahicles
(ROVs} and irenching and mining equipmenl. Infarmation on the Group's struclure is pravided In Note 15.
Information on olher related party relalionships of the Group is providad in Nole 28

Accounting policies

Basfs of p and of with IFRS

The financial statemenls of the Specialisl Machlne Developmenls {SMD} Limited Company and ils Group
have been prepared In accordance with Inlemallonal Financlal Reparting Slandards (IFRS} as adopted by
the European Union (EU)

The financlal slatemenls have bean prepared uslng the i policles and

bages lhal are in sffect at Lhe end of the reporting period on 31 December 2017 as defined balow. The
presentation currency is GBP Sterling {£}), which is also the functional currency of the Company and Group
All policles and measurement bases were in effect ihroughoul all periads presantad in Lha financlal
stalemenls

Going concemn

The directors have prepared the financial slatements on a going concem basls on the grounds that the
Company axpacls te meel ils liabililiss as lhay fall due. The diractors have reached Lhis conclusion afiar
undertaking a delailed review of the Company's lrading and cash flow forecasts and Lhe financial facililies
expacled to be avallabla lo the Company from Its Inveslors, bankers and other slakeholders. In making this
assessment the directors acknowisdge the lollowing:

I The Group has nel liabililies of £2.7m, allhough is in a nel current assels position of 4 8m

Ii.  The Group remalna within the limits of the current [acililies egreement with Citibank and from
cash fiow lorecasts will conlinue to fund current oparalions for al least the next 12 monlhs from
lhe dale of approval of thesa financial slalements.

Hl,  Goaing from a loss of £9.7m In 2016 the Graup beat its targat of breaking even in 2017 by
generaling a small profil, indicaling the market recovery is well underway,

Y. Thae closing order boak for 2017 is £16m (2016 £17.3m), but is slill far higher [han the 2015
closing arder book of £3,6m,

V. The immedials parent company CRRC Timas Elactric {Hong Kong) Co. Limiled has guaranteed
bolh financial support lo the Group and lo refrain from racalling the £62.4m loan notes unlil the
Group has enough funds (o make the rapayment.

Consolidated financial statements

The Group financial Il |he fnancial of Specialisl Machine Developmonts
(SMD) Limited and all ifs subsidiary underiakings, all of which whose issued share capital are owned 100%
wilhin lhe Group. On consolidation, all inlra-group assets and llabilitles, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relaling lo transactions betwesn mambers of the Group are eliminated in full on consalldation.

Enlilies in which the Group halds an inlerest on a lang-lerm basis and are joinlly conlrolled by the Group
and one or mare olher venlures under a canlraclual agresmenl, are lrealed as joinl venlures in accordance
wilh IFRS 11 and are accounled for using Lhe equity malhad, The financial statements of tha jinl venlures
are prepared in accordance wilh IFRS for (he same reporling period as (he Group. Carrying values are
reviewed for Impairment when evenis or changes in circumslances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable,

Separate financial statements

The separate financial stalements disclose the financial information of the Specialist Machine
Developmanls {SMD) Limited Company. Invasimenls in subsidiaries are recorded al cost less provision for
impeirmenl, whare cammying values are reviewed for Impainment when evenls or changes in circumslances
indicale the carrying valus may not be recoverable.

H

Specialist Machine Developmenls (SMD) Limited

Revenue

Revaniso, axcluding value added lax, sales lo outside confracls
and nan-contract Arvmue, which includes salies of sparas pits and lunpa’t wanions.

(u) Contract ravenue
The mmal operates fixad price contracts. If tha outconie of sisch a confrasl can be reliably
" e contract i by tefarence to he staga of
complation of lhe cnnlmct activity al year end (lhe percenlage of complalion method)
The autcome of a canslruclion cantract can be estimated rellably when:
i e L) SenlinGt tevete can b miagsuted relsbly,
(li)) it ks peobabie that the Bonofil -u.Gnconumwl&Ibwbhm.' 3
(lily the coals In compiola Thi conlmct ama B stagh of completion can bo mastutad foliably, s
(iv) e contrac coats. mw.bln it contract can mm‘g‘udenmmmm
30 that riof
oulcome of a conslruction canlract cannol bs estimaled relfably {principally during early
slages of a canlract), contract revenue Is recognised only to the extant of cosls incurred that
are expecled lo be recoverable.

In apgilying tha ol compl mefhad, mvanue o i folal contracl
revienue (as ) Pl Ihe sciual ot basad o th of lolat
cantract cosla {as b d Lo date and the sstimaled o complete,

Corlinet Contenct 3 o the inillal amaunt of rewsnue agreed i the conlract

wnd ooy vivfations i contrach work, clrims and incentive wmﬂllln the axtent hat i is probable that lhey
‘wil reautt In eovarien, and they ar capobia of baing roliably moisund,
Comracl cosls — Conlracl cosls include cosls that relale directly (o tha spaclfic conlract and costs thal are
o aﬂdmbnulocnlnaww mmmmlm ﬁm!\rm a
speciic contract compiiser st ) conte of mntorints unod
if 'mmwmmﬂmn.wmwumun:omm

is directly ralaled lo the contracl,

The P ket ypecally faled for of a single assat or & group of assaly
vhich are closaly vt hmﬂMmmmW mmra:b
for seevices dinctiy redniod o

Provided Lhal the outcame of conslruction canlracls can be assessed with reasunshls cartanty, such
cankracts oo valued al cosl plus afintndable profit samed lo date. Full is made for any estimaled
Tosses (o complalisn of conlracts me s0n as they became reasanatsy lo.

Proytess payments frecavad, whin grestar S reconded mvenus, om dediched from asmounts
rpcovarabio on contricls gasept 1o he dxian hat parymants on aocount ecud IMMN!\]‘MI
recovorabie on a comrnct whe i axcess is includad in dofarmed income, Tha amount by which mcedsd
ravenue of canslruction conlracts Is In excess of paymenls on account Is classified as ‘amounls
racoverabls on conlracls’

b} Ner-conirasl rvanue

M which _n(m pnmw:unporl mghrummmme
trantat of ik and e of Tie goods lo sinlly on tehvary of
fpoads. Ruvonue i nol o b ,,,.,.,,m_., rogarding rcsvery
of i, ot of B po o

Other oparating income

e nmmmwmm:mmmmcﬂmnqummco Lk 10

Ticenso intolleciuul progery rghts of SR technology to the CRRC Gm;;emmus\o m]mg:umm

whwmmlﬂhmlm and suppor whan g e 2
lied asa wmppoﬂnmdouwunmumdlnlm

ncoma In
required by the agreement of he lotal licence faes owad for the yenr.

Current taxation

Currenl income tax assels and llabliities for the current and prior periods are measurad al lhe amount
axgetind lo be recovered from or paid to the laxalion muthoriies. The tax rales and lax laws used lo
computa the amaunl are those Lhal are enacted or sulistantively enacted at the end of Ihe reporling period

Current income laxas are recegnised In profit or loss excepl lo lhe extent that the lax relates loitems

rocognised oulyice poft Or 106, eTher in offvr ey ir
podadically muhn pasllieg mnmmmm mmn itupdions Inwmh mpplicable tax
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Deferred taxation

Deferced lax is recognised, using Ihe Nubdlity method, on tomgpiay differences arising bebwian the tax
bases of assitn and Eabilitkas and Lheif camying amounls kn e financial stalements. Hewever, diderred tax
liabillies are not recagnised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred lax is nol
accounted for If | arlses from initial recognition o an assal or liability in a imaspcBon olher than a business
combination that al the time of he transaction Mnr.ll iyther accounnng nnl' Exenbla profit or Joss. De'errsd
i I Unalscountert &nd delermined usirig (ax rivbes |

lry the balanen sheel date and are exjpcind to npply -m-u Ve rplatuc defurrod tax assel is
realised or \he deferred Lax iiability is setlled

Dnkymod tx ausals are meogriied only lo e tadent Lhat il is probable lhat future Laxable profit will be
availatie againsl which th lumporary differencos can be ulllised.

Inventaries
Mrvenbotin ared wark in progross are valued at the lower of cost and nel reallsable valus. Cost includes an
il of

Property, plant and equipment

All property, planl and equipment are recorded al cos! less accumulaled depreclalion and any provision for
impalrmenl. Depregialion is calculated so as 1o wrile off lhe cosl of the assel, Iess ils eslimated resldual
value, over the useful economic life of Ihal assel as follows:

Freshald property - 50 years

Leasehold propertles and improvements  — Minimum Jease term {3 — 20 years)
Fixtures and fitUnge - 4-10 years

Molor vehicles - 4 years

Campuler Equipment - 4 years

Freahold land is not depreciated.

Intangibles
(a) Goodwill
Gaadwill arises on the acquisition aof subsidiaries, associales and joint venlures and rapresents lhe axcess

of the conslderalion Lransfarred over the Group's interest in net fair value of lhe net identifiable assels,
liabilities and canlingenl llabllilies of lhe acquires.

Goodwill kmpalnmoat raviews are : iy or more oveits or changes in
i Inciealo a pedpnsal i MIII is allocaln to lhewwlngvml {CGU)
expected to benefit from the i The Group has thal il has a single CGU for the

purposes of [he impairment testing, The carrying value of the CGU to which goodwill is allocaled is
comparsd lo lne recoverable amounl, which is lhe hlgher of value In usa and the falr value less costs of
disposal Any i of goodwill Is i as an expense and is not subsequently
roverd,

{b) Computer soffware

Inlangible asssts rlals to capilalised compuler software that is rot integral lo retaled hardware. It is
reconded al cost less amortisalion wilh a useful life of Lhe length of Lhe software license or 4-5 years where
the lleenna is indefinite,

{c) Research and development

The Company does not capilallse research expenditure as il is recognised as an expense when il Is
<nsls are pssaesed 00 A case by case basis on whalher they am cagitalisad as an
|n|mq NOM\'I’IIHM“H appw Ihe odhﬂa of IAS 38.57(a-f) which includes Lhe bty to use ar sell

Ihe assal, [t ard nlanticn b of the assed, i il wil generale probable
future econaris bepality and H ho urpgndm can be monsured rafinbdy. 11 ik then amortised over the
period of the WEA-5 Y on isvirige.

Financial instruments

A finirclal instrument Is any contract Lhat gives risa to a financial assel af one antity and a financial liability
or aquity instrument of anather entity.

Financial assets include foreign exchange forward conlracls Lhal are classified as fair value Lhrough lhe

profit o loss. Thase are cerried in lhe balance sheet al fair value wilh nel changes in fair vaiue presanted
as finance cosls {negalive nel changes in fair vatue) ar finance income (pasilive nel changes in fair value)
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R e ——
o of ncome. For o Comgrany s hiitian thal
amanhn“mumwmmnmrmﬂwabblumlﬂm
9 tha usa af
Mn-mmmumwm-nmmm»wmnmmmwmhm
f thas assat have been tnnsinrmod, An impaimant
ol mch m‘- wmuwmmmmw

SRR, OF (o ai el is mpaied. An

i tha pasat (an incurned ‘ioms avnnd },hu an mrmmummmm

flows |hal can be reliably estimated.

Flnaaclal llabilities relate (o issued loan notes Iradedron the Intamallanal Stock Exchange and t(')‘:narﬁ .

leasny that ar mw:-cogulud at fale vabin niet of any dimcly attibutable ransocBon costs, Afler intiel
2 the alfiective intoroal rate miihod.

Galng -ndlummlomgﬂwd ) profl of ek whan wmmmnd n nlainwnh

th pifoctve Intmeasl rada arg i

liability has elther been discharged, cancelted or expired.

Amddtiged cost is cilculaled by laking nlo actount any discount or pramium on acquisiea and laes or

<ol Wiat are aq iskeral part of he etaclive Wlammst rate. The affoctive inlurest ralo amartisation is

includad as financa cosls in tha slatement of profiL or loss

For delails of lhe financlal Instruments disclosed see Nate 16

Fare[qn currencies

functiond cumancy using (ha oxchangs e
wmﬂhudﬂndmnlwwmm(mmmml rm-mm-mm
Mq-mnm f ugh mnrm

u it yoor-ond i rulzun statoment
of Incame, M y lhearts mro not -ﬂwarmwmm-wu
b g0 rals il the

I the Growp's fnpncial mmum Neatsllitions andt rmnuﬁmul Srotp entites wilh a functional

curroncy othiet thin th £ an o Assats und Babilitos have been
Eat i3 10l 0 ho ropartiig e cinpy have bean translated al
ummmanammiumoﬂmpm" hang ¢ itod to other
Incoma wnd tacop —-—-MM
Leases
The [or contning) @ kosse (s based an e subatanco of the

anangamant at the incaplion ulmm mwmuumulhm! fulfilenont of tho
amangamant is depandant an tie use of o apncific ssset o assuts and the arrstgirent convys 8 Aghl lo
use g aEsat ar aNsete, sven il thal dght in nel exphicily spocifiod in an srengemant

(8) As alessee

A lossa is classified al the lneagitinn dale as a finance laase or an operaling lease. A lanss thil transfers
mhnnllally all Lhe risks and rewards incidental i ownerihip lo the Group is classified # a finance lease.

Finnce b at th F bty Mtk 01 the Incapbion divts lie vidon of Do
Ieuwmm.nmr.ulnpmsammnulmmm poymants. Lemes paymonis and
‘apportionod botwsan Enanca chinges and reducticn of (he lsaza Habisty so un o achiove a conatant rale of
Wmmmmmﬂm% Finettvca chuirgas are recoghised in Bnance conts in the
slalement of income.
A toasod assel s doprocisbd aver fhe usatil Mo of the assat. Hewsvar, If thare 1 no rasondblo cerlaly
that tha Gieip wil obtaln swmership By the end of he lease lerm, the assal s dapeecioded over the shorter
al tho vatirmaied ussful Ho of s assel and Lhe lease term

Operaling Iease payments are recagnised a6 an operaling expenss In the consolidaled statement of
income on a straighl-line basis over the Isase larm.

(b} As alessor
NmnrmmmmmmﬁnMImmhhwm-u

i e beanb. The Gmup mcognis0s fnance incoma
mmammmﬂmammmmummmwwm oubstanding in
resppcl of the financs lise. The Growp hos not angagad i oparating feasen as @ lessr inany of e years
reporied.
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Warranty provisions

Provisions are recognised when lhe Group has a present obligalion {legal or constructive} as a result of a
pasl evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources embadylng economic benefits will be required to
setlle the obligallon and a rellable estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation, A provision is
made for the eslimaled fulure cosl of meeling warranty and olher contractual obligalions in respect of sales
{o customers under construclion contracts and sales of epare parts.

Pensions

The Group conlribules o individual pansion scheme amangements for employees. The assets of the
scheme are held sepamtsly from those of the Group. The annual contributions payable are charged (o lhe
ive Income,

New standards and interpretetions not appiled

The Intemalional Accounting Standards Board (*|ASB”} and the Inlsrnallonal Flnanclal Rsponlng
Interprelations Committae (“IFRIC") have issued tha following
wilh an affactive date afiar these financial statements:

Effaclive date
IFRS 9 Finnncial ingtrumonts 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Hovenun oo conbmets with custemern 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will ba adopted by lhe SMD Group for he year ending 31 December 2016,
Managemenl are curranlly reviawing ihe slandard to undersland its Impact on accounting for financial
assels, but do not expect there to be a malerial impact an (he financial statements aside from increased
disclosura requiremenls.,

IFRS 15 Revenus from Conlracls wilh Cuslomers will be adaplad by SMD for the year ending 31
December 2018. During the year, SMD had undertaken a raview of significan! conlract terms and
condilions against the requirements of IFRS 15. As part of the review, management considered allemalives
lo the current basis of revenue ilion (cost of labaur and malerials per tolal faracasled
costs), such as number of hours worked per lotal foracasted hours. In arriving al the best approach,
managemenl faclored in that materials consumed an contracts are lyplcally bespoke in nalurs, designed by
SMD and are controlied by the cuslomer. Given malerials are fundamenlal (o each conlract, lhe cument
melhad was |herelors deeamed more rellactive of conlract progress and hence revenue and margin
racognillon, As a resull, the review cancluded there are no contracts which are expecled to require a
malarially different realment under IFRS 15 versus current slandards. Therefore the Intreduclion of IFRS
15 is curently not expected Io impacl lhe financial stalemenls in future periods other (han additional
disclosure raqulrements.

Regarding IFRS 16 Leasas, it e Group 40 A Ieased sutls and
lease llabilities by an amount e tha fubrn Is outlined In Nate 25.

Slgnlficant Ing j and i

The lion of the Group's i financial raqulres

j estimates and lions Lhat affect lhe reparted amounls af ravenuas, expenses, assets
and liabilities, the ing di and Ihe dis of the i liabilities.

In the process of applying lhe Gmup 's accounling palicies, management has made Lhe following
imales and which have the most significant effect on lhe amounls recognised
In the consolldaled financlal stataments:

Construction contracts

The group racognises revenue relaling lo conlracts on a ion of cosls basis
In order lo determine lha overall conlracl cosl, eslimates ars used based on a combination of intemal and
exlemal sources wilh expert and In thelr resp araas. The overall contract cost

including any aslimalas, conlract risk and current progress against schedule and budgel are reviewed by
management belare any prograss is recogniged in the financial statements.

Goodwill impairment review

Management were required (o make jt Il and i when ing the gaodwill
impainmenl review, lo support Ihe carmying value recognised in the financial stalements, This was based on
the crilerla thal an impairmenl exisls when the carrying value of an assel exceeds ils recoverable amount,
which is Lhe higher of ils [air valuo lass costs of disposal and ils value in use.
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To ine il an i oxlsls used a cash flow (DCF) madel based on
forecasted cash flowa over a {lve year period plus lhe lerminal year, The model was sensilive lo
Raumptions baked on revenue, EBTDA (samings befare intires, tax. depreciation and amortisation)
s and deount rabi, ihe sltects ol which are discussed in greator detall In Note 14.

Inventory provision .

Thae Group mooghises § pridaion agains imntory based on whovte the nel il ik

Is beraor than hlmwlﬂurwqbqa inrvanbaey, which £2.020 589 IWJ

017 (2015~ £1,561.630), g 1his proviskon, maiin N i
which hive nod bawn consuemdd, ither on & confract or sold as s spins, 1 at lnaal & year incurs a

priviticn o 20% of i oginnl cost, incroasing by @ fusther 20% for aach yanr horafar. Immntory Bt s
five years or alder ia lherefars fully impaired.

Recaivables provision

As tha Groap's maln saurea of is dhueived from wiienis ian conlracls, revenue and
racaivables can Auciuats slgnieantly from ywar to year deppnding on market conditions al the time,
Impalrmenls to receivables are tharefora Judgad on a case by case basis, as a flat rale percentage
provision would nol fairly represenl lhe recoverabliity.

1 artbing el the recaivalies provision, management parform o reviow of il rocoivisblos and asseas fhy
Tikalinood of camying vakis niconary, facturing in bialh feadback frem mmmm the abllity o the

(0 salid B Gabi. i) value, the Group
recognlses a specific provision. Please sae Nole 18 which dlsclases lrada and other receivables balancas
including recognised impalrments,

Warranty provision
The Group offars warranly oty ils producls, typically for one year, eoviwing machine and compornent part
failures. Due lo Ihe uncertalnty of the Uming and xtent of such fufurak minugement esllmllu l warranty
wmhﬂwdnnl‘!.u‘ MW‘\'MII"" Feebin

and a

nlmoruhb wmmarmmmnlmmmmmnnmy
decroase the wiranty provision if necossary. Ploase sea Note 22 which
|ncludas disclosure of lhe warranty pravision racognised.

Contingent liabillties
The Grobp is party mmlul\mkllinclude ﬁnancla1 punatties should tha Group fail 1o provida goods
and s=rvicss that meal an dmol\'lumof

cuﬂwmwmmmlwuumammmmim{ pymant
the Geoup entem into hmﬁmmrmnwlum i bk ws part
tha I-umm (Notn 13), whaen the bank will saltie 1h ahould Bhiry
and reclalm this back from the Group.
on the likelihood of ci ! (P g, the
curml and lwucnled futare porformance of ite protducts and tha Group’s akity to comgly wilh the spevilic
Tho asgessmant found tha axtanl of Mo guaranioss was £4,657.418 (2016 - £0,174,345) and
deemed the likelihood of any bonds materialising lo be remale, therefore the guarantses have been
disclosed as a conlingent liability only {see Nols 25),

Defarred tax
Deferrad lax assels are recogmsed for unused tax losses o lhe oxtent thal it Is orobable Lhal taxable profit
will be availabla against which this ks be ulilised. Si Is requirad lo

determine the amount of defamod tnx assals hat can be racogrisad, based upon the likely Liming and the
lavel of fulure lax profils togslher with lax planning siralegies.

The Group has E12,459,510 (2016 + £12,251,829) lola) tax Jossas camied forward, tha vast majority of
which consist of unkitad lossas from tha prior year. In assassing tha ricaverabiily of thaso lossas
management consldeeed perfarmance larecasts and as the Grug i eapdcled 1o ncreasa in profilatilty in
fubste ywars, il was detarmined hat the entine £12,450,510 Lax knses ean be recognised for fulum offest.
On andfyss. mwmu quumm:ll!u Lo bessos will be fullyuﬂhau br!m bt note
lhalehmn w roportod tax charge.
Manzgemaont esimate mmmmm MI b uldlud i 2D ol lhe wikling rato af 19% and
£3H12.075 lossas hllssd n 2070 at the blanded rate of 17.5%, resulting in in # doferrad tax asset for he
year ended 2017 of £2,314,455 {2016 - £2,267,308)

See Note 11 lor deferred tax disclosures,
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4. Capital Management

For Ihe pumpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued share capital, share premium
and all alher equity reserves altribulable to Lhe equity holders of the parent The primary objeclive of Lhe
Group's capital is to maximisa valua.

The Group does not actively manage ils capital slructure ta a fixed amount or rate and inslead makes
adjustmsnts in light of changes In economic condltions and requirements of sts financial obligalions. Prior lo
Agril 2015 this Included meeting financial covenanls imposad by lhe Group's bank, bul subsequent lo lhat
date the covenanls were removed when lhe Group was acquired by the CRRC Group. Since acquisition,
Lhe capifal siruclure Is now delerminad by CRRC and may change dapending on profilabllity and cash Now.
The Group monilars capilal using lhe gearing ratio, which Is net debl divided by lotal capltal plus net debt;
wilhin nel dabt lhe Group includes interesi-bearing loans and bomowings and lrade and olher payables,
less cash and sharl-term deposils

2017 2016
£ £
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 75,476,740 73,018,616
Trade and other payables 20,219,277 8,848,244
Less: cash and shari-term deposits (2A70.380) _ (1.884.138)
Net debt 93,519,637 79,098,722
Tolal equity (2,683.696)  (2,778,395)
Capital and net debt 90,835,941 77,220,327
Gearing ratia 103% 104%

In order lo achieve the primary objeclive, the Group’s capilal managament, amangsl other lhings, aims lo
ensure Lhal il meels the financial obligalions allached to lhe inleresi-bearing loans and borrowings that

define capilal siructure i A cash flow ilialion of the Group's ings 18 shawn below,
Borrowings Finance Tolal
lsases
£ £ E
AL January 2017 72,937,252 81,364 73018616
Cash flows:
- Capilal element of hire purchass payments. - (53,575) {53,575}
- Drawdown of bank loan 13,000,000 - 13,000,000
- Interest paid (2,513,600) - (2,513,600)
- Borrowings repaid (10,537,252) - (10,537,252)
Non-cash flows:
- Interest expense 2556204 B.257 2562561
At 31 December 2017 75,442,694 34,046 75,476,740

Inleresl pald and inleres! expense include interes| assacialed wilh borrawings anly, Noled wilh ihe
slalement of cash llows, lhe Group repaid ils overdrafi facility of £10,537,252.
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5. Revenue

Tha graup applies IFRS 8 Operaling Segmenls which provides segmenlal informallon for the group on the
basls of Informalion reported Intemaliy to the chief operaling dacision maker for declsion-making purposes,
The Group considers thal the role of chisf operaling decislon maker is perfarmed by lhe Board of Direclors,
Anblyshs of revenue is prradred mnd manitined on a divislonal basls, howevar, resource atacation
tacisions ara mada on @ group hasds and, a8 3 resull, the Directues consider thal Lhere Is ang eperating
sagmenl as dafined under IFRS 8, baing Lhe whole graup

An analysis of ravenua by gaographical market is given balaw:

2017 2016

£ £
Uniled Kingdom 8,057,830 §,903,508
Paople’s Republic af China 18,741,905 4,435,124
Nelheriands 10,846,702 385,107

Rest of lhe worlg 16,226,379 10,329,059

53,672,616 21,052,796 _

An analysis of revenue is given below:

2017 2016
£ £

39,321,949 11,802,472
14,550,867 9,250,324
53,872,616 21,052,796

Contract revenus
Non-cantract revenue

2017 2016
(3 £

Aggregate amount of casls incurred and recognised pralits {less

122,938,707 84,400,840
racognlsed losses) la date

Amounh af rdentions 3,198,501 3.147.501
2017 2016
£ £

Amounts recoverable on conlrcts {Nole 18) 14,030,062 3,638,754
Payments raceived on account (Nole 20) 826,254 ]

o
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6. Operating profiti(loss)
This is slaled after charging/{crediting):
2017 2016
£ (3
Amaounl of invenlories recognised as an expense 28,723,882 7,300,770
Audilor's remuneralion - as audilor 90,000 90,000
Audltar's remunerallon N non audil 5,000 -
Depraclation of awnad property, planl and equipment {Note 12) 486,260 476,549
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 11,248 125,218
Amortisalion of awned intangible assels (Nole 13) 318,568 341,338
Research and developmenl cosls 294,920 656,432
R&D above the line lax credit {847,976) {180,417)
Integrallan costs - 1,400,000
Racharge of integratlon cosls - (1.400,000)
Licence fee income (2750,000)  (2,200,000)
Net galn on foreign currency lranslation (212,457) (80,868)
Operaling leass rentals - land and buildings 503,655 543,542
7. Directors’' remuneration
2017 2016
£ £
Aggregale remuneralion in respecl of qualifying services 874,282 733,396
Value of company pension coniributions lo money purchase achemes 18,917 27,800
893,199 761,196
No. No.
Members of maney purchase pensian schemas 2 2
The amounts in respecl of he highest paid director are as follaws:
2017 2016
£ E
Remunaralion in respact af qualifying services 302,300 329,342
Value aof company pension conlributions (o money purchase schemes. - 13,861
302,300 343,193

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

Staff costs
8.1. Group
2017 2016
£ E
Wages and salaries 12,994,368 11,587,595
Social security cosls 1,356,219 1,185,762
Olher pension cosls 598,801 584,965
14,949,378 13,358,322
—_— e

The average monthly number of employaes during tha yaar was made up as follows:

No. No.

Administralion L] [:]
Praduction i) 176
280 145

In addltion, the Group ulilises Lhe service of tamporary contraclors engaged through agencies

8.2. Company
There were no individuals employed by the Company during the year (2018: nil)

9. Finance income
2017 2016
£ £
Bank interes! recelvable 3
Qther interest raceivable =
62T
10. FInance costs
2017 2016
£ £
On bank loans and overdrafts 158,294 155,454
On loan noles 2,400,000 2,400,000
Flnance kease inbismwsl 6,257 10,932
Olher interest 875
Bonding charges _ 204,873
2,768,209
. 0
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11. Income Tax
11.1. Group
The major components of incoma lax expense for 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
{8) Incomo Statement
2017 2016
£ £
Current Income tax;
Currenl Income tax 92,450 -
Ad|ustments In respect of priar years - 89,154
Foraign lax suffered . 268 200,000
372,718 280,154
Deferred tax;
Curenl year (108,745) (2,455171)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 977 {74,038)
Effecl of lax rate change on opening balance 55471 118,355
I50.507)  (2,410852)
Total Income tax In the of e —
Incoma 322,121 (2,121,698)
(2] of tax no/ to profity) bafore tax
2017 2016
£ £
Profit/(loss) before tax 444,201 (11,919,642)
Tax on profit/(loss) al standard UK lax rate of 19 25% (2016: 20%) 85,501 (2,383,028)
Effects of:
Ad|uslments In respecl of prior years 977 18,118
Expenses nol deductible for (ax purposes 20,845 45,556
Incama not taxablo for Lix purpsaes (6,046) (77,284)
Tax rale changas 55,171 118,355
Effecls of foreign lax suffered 178,864 160,000
Corporata inleres! restriction _(13,18%) -
Total Incoms tax In the of
incoms 322,121 (2,121,698)
(c) Deferred tax
Statemant of
Bafance shaat comprehensive income
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ {3
Accelarated deprecialion for lax purposes (17,597) (66,840) (38,816) (69,861)
Temporary dilferences -~ trading 18,658 14,973 32310 20,353
Adjuslments in respecl of prior years - - 1,462 (74,036)
Trading losses 214455 2.087.308 (45,553)  (2287.308)
Doforred tax Incams (80,597)  (2,410,852)
Net daferred assat 2,315,716 2,246,441

Tha Group offsels tax assels and liabilities if and only il it has a legally enlorceable right to sel off current
lax assals and current tax Jiabilities and the deferred lax assets and defemed tax labililies relate lo incoms
taxes levied by the same lax authority. Al lhe year endad 2017 he Company hed lolal ax losses of
£12,459,510 and on lhe basls lhey will be utilised in full by 2020 have been recognised as a £2,314,455
defarred tax assel.
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L e e

{d) Change in corporalion tax rate o . )

The UK govemmant has annaunced ils intaniion to reduce the UK corporation tax rale lo 17% by 1 April 14. Goodwlll impairment review

2020 and has now been substanlively enacted The Board manilor the business al & Group level and goodwil is allocated lo a single CGU, baing the
enlrely of the Group and was tested for impairmenl al this ovarall Graup level

11.2. Company

The Company manages ils tax assets and llabllities In accardance wilh the Group palicy per Nole 11.1, At 14.1. Carrying valus of goodwiil 2017 2016
the year ended 2017 the Campany had total tax losses of £428,# 18 of which 81,457 hive been

retogiised s a diferrad tx assi, This is on the basis thal Ihe canbid farawnd trading lesses are £ £
fnrocastod to be ulilised in full by 2070,

Goodwill camying value 44070014 44,970,014
12. Property, plant and equlpment Al the end of the year the Specialis| Machine Devalopments {SMD) Group had net liabilitles of £2,683,696,
N compared to net liabillies of £2,778,385 al the and of 2016, Tha decline of the oil and gas Indusiry [n recent
Group Frz)ef::‘ld Leas:ggr; F”"""eﬁflf"d %‘D’fgg ec'z',.""’::", Tatal years had praviausly led (o a dacrease in revenue for the Group, bul from diversifying its product range and
Lo @ v auip expanding Into new geographical markets the Group has since increased its revanus Lo £53,872,816 {up
improvemant from £21,052,796 In 2016). In with [AS 36 ill impai
¢ 000} £ r £ ¢ s assessment based on & value in use calculation using cash flow projactlens from financlal budgels. The
0 goodwill i was lo be which reflacts the Group's return to
profit, the conlinvingly strong order book and mesting (he targels sat by management.
Cost:
At1 January 2016 2268875 2492223 1680674 31,535 880,204 7,353,601 14,2. Value In use
Addilions 172,500 = 194,801 - 163,505 520,806 Value in use was calculated using discounted free cash flows cavering a five year peried plus terminal year.
Disposals - (249,248) (4.999) {20,000)  (142,859)  (417.104) The model uses a pre-lax discount rate of 14.32%, as discussed balow, (comparable to 12.5% posl tax
Teansfers lo current . N (93,191) . N (93,191) rata) on cash flow projections with revenus growth and EBITDA margin as lollows:
:559‘5 - 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Terminal
orelgn exchange . . 13,076 . 162 25407 yoar
Revenus growih 24% 29% 17% 15% 17% 2%
Al 31 December 2016 .
and 1 January 2017 2441375 2242977 1,791,160 11,535 902,562 7,389,609 EBITDA margin 10% 14% 14% 15% 17% 17%
Addltions 41,404 - 45,453 . 184,341 251,198 In comparison with the prior year projection revenus largels are now lawer but EBITDA margins are higher,
Disposals = (47,853) {11,805) - {3,215} {62,073) which highlights the Graup’s shift In focus to prafitabllity, Whilst it narrowly missed fls 2017 revenue targel
Reclassifications (246,849) 180,592 35,666 10,695 19,896 . of £55m, Lhe Group signiﬁcanl%y excee‘ded its IIEBITDQ larget gri:a 3m by achieving £4.0m in the 'y[/’sar.
i il anagement's confidenca in its ability Lt | Group performance and that futul sts
Forelgn exchange 4 v (1,363) . (5.558)  (6.921) increasing manag n ts abilty to foracas! Group pe re foreca
Al 31 Decomber 2017 2718090 2375716 1859911 22230 10M026  TATIO3 also ise that whilst average revenue giwlh exceeds 18% and appears lo
Deproclation: be optimistic, prior to the decline in the oil and gas industry from 2011 o 2014 the Group generalsd
At1 January 2016 (345,362)  (930,764) (1,124,231) (20,421)  (637,208) (3,057,966) averaga revenuas ultgﬁm_ Long-tarm revenus growih is 'therafora refleclive of markel racovery as
) 128,918 4.900 20,000 142,363 296 280 opposed lo brand new business, As a result of the analysie and managemenl's expaclatlons for the
Disposals 3 4 4 g v g business, lhe valua in use was found lo comfortably exceed (he carrying amounl of the Group's CGU_ The
Z;:ggers to current . - 45,855 - - 45,855 key assumptions that are mosl sensilive on the value in use calculalion are revanus, EBITDA margin and
discaunt rale,
Chargs for the year {45,747) (103,868) (188,460) (5,558) (134,916)  (476,549)
E%'::g:c"a";“"’"g" . . (12,823) . (10,662)  (23485) 14.3, Rovenus and EBITDA margin
AL 31 December 2016 Historically, the vasl majority of the Group's oparations wera cenired on lha oil and gas induslry and as
and 1 January 2017 (391.109)  (905.714) (1,272,660) (5979)  (640423) (3,215885) such Lhe suppression In lha markel has had a direct impact on lhe Group's performance in recent yaars, In
Disposals x 29,045 10,587 o 1,995 51627 an effort ta reduce ils dependancy on oil and gas and Lhareby reduce the Impacl of anolher dacline, (he
posals 189,695 123‘438 48‘226 694 7'337 ' buslness has focused heavlly on diverslfylng its product range and offerings 1o altemalive markets, This
Reclassifications 4 (123,438) (48,226) (10.694) (7.337) - was the main source of growth in 2017 and will conlinue for [he next few yaars with only long-term growth
Charge for lha year (47.759)  (122689)  (179,717) (6,557)  (130.538)  (486,260) being supported by oil and gas markel recovery. In canjunction with a closing ordar book of E18m (up from
Forelgn exchenge a low polnl of £3.6m in 2015) and support from its paranl company lo eslablish SMD's presence In (he Far-

- 1,363 - 5,408 8,771

> I S —— Easl, management are confidenl farecasted revenue and EBITDA margins ara realistic and suslalnable.
At31 December 2017 __ (49173} {1112,708) (1488.653) (2230 (77008 (3

A7} In order Lo test (he sensillvity of revenue and EBITDA projectians usad In Iha model, managament
Nel book value: considered a 'hase-case’ scanario where the Group would achieve basic expectations (8% lower revenue
At 31 December 2017 __ 1,986,757 1,262,920 370,458 - 307,131 3,927,266 nni 14% lorwar EBITOA), In this scenang vatua nuwuwa‘ téghar thian nel assals excluding inlerest
Al 31 Dacembar 2018 binring dabl, companed i 84% used in the original cash madol. Managomant are therefors confident
2050266  1,337.263 518500 5556 262139 4173724 that sven If parfarmance wes worse then expected there is more B snough margln of error for the

and 1 January 2017
At1 January 2016 1923513 1561450 556,443 11,114 243006 4205815

goodwill i valua Lo ba supporied.

14.4. Discount rate
The pre-lax discounl rale of 14 32% used in lhe medel Includes interal and extemnal risks on the Group,
such as cash flow and borrowing facililies avallable as well as markel risk of Ihe ail and gas industry. Whan
consldering exiernal Inlerasting bear debt (bsing \he faciliies agreemenl discussed in Nols 19) is only 1.8%
above LIBOR and lhe continuing support from the CRRC Group, management deem the discounl rale lo
32 be refleclive of the Group's risk profila.
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On review of lha vafue In use senshivity to the discounl rale it was found thal should It be as high as 17%

13, Intanglble assats when all other agsumptions remain stallc, the value in use is still 22% greater than the nel assefs excluding

Group Computer  Product  Inleflectual  Goodwill Total interest bearing debl,
software Davelopment Property
£ 'y 5 £ E 14.5. Considering a reasonably possible change In ell assumptions
Further scrutinising the cash. flow model, hava i lha. impact of reducad
Cost: revenue and EBITDA margin and increased discounl rate whan calculating the velue In use, It is deemed
At1 January 2016 2,747,112 - - 44,970,014 47,717,126 raasonably passible that each key assumplion could change to thatin Lha {able below:
Addltiona 58,323 886,001 - - 944,324 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Terminal
Disposals (1,057,852) - - - {1,057.852) . s year
At 31 Dacember 2016 and 1 N avenusa gro 15% 6% 13% 15% 14% 2%
January 2017 1,747,583 886,001 - 44,970,014 47,603,508 EBITOA margin 1% 14% 14% 15% 18% 16%
Addilians 37,128 642,190 124,586 - 803,904 Discount rele 17% 17% 17% 17% 17% 17%
Disposals (639) - = - (639) hi . . =
is scenario resulls in @ headroom above impalrment of only 1% and whilst this still supports the carrying

At 31 Dacember 2017 1,784,072 1,528,191 124,586 44,970,014 48,406,863 velus of goadwill held by the Group, management note Lhal should Lhese assumplions further change
Amorlisallon: unfavourably, [L could result in an impairment that would have a malarial impact on the Group's financial
At 1 January 2018 (2,032,622) = s = {2,032,622) statemenls, Hawevar, on balancs af lha risk of goodwill impairment lo the assumplions used in the value in
Disposals 1,063,458 _ 5 2 1,063,458 usa r_nodel. management are very confident the gaodwill carrying value Is still supported and thal no
Charge for the yaar (341,338) = J 5 (341.338) Impairment axisls at the year end.
At 31 Decamber 2016 and 1
January 2017 (1,320,502) - - - (1,320502)
Disposals 38 . . - 638
Charge for tha year {314,405} * = = (nbzsas)
Al 31 December 2017 {1.634,072) - = (163452
Net book value:
At 31 December 2017 149,793 1,528,191 120,433 44,970,014 46,768,431
Al 31 December 2016 and 1
January 2017 427,081 888,001 - 44,970,014 48,283,096
Al 1 January 2016 714,480 - - 44,970,014 45,684,504
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15. Invastmenls

(a) Joint venturas

Group SMD Energy SMD Closoco Total
Lid L

£ L (3
At 1 January 2017 2 103,129 103,131
Dispasals ) - @
Relum of capilal = {109, 124) (103.129)
Al 31 December 2017 2 = =
The brought forward investmant in the Group balance sheal represenis ils Joint venlure holdings In SMD
Enengy Ltd and SMD Closeco LId {formarty SMD-BORD Lid). During the ywar an agreement was fsiched

bitwsan the SMD Group and the other joint party to SMD Enargy L{d to wind up the affairs of the company.
On 7 November 2017 SMD Energy Ltd was officially dissolved,

In April 2017 the Graup acquired Lhe remaining issued share capilal af SMD Closaco Ltd, makingit a
consolidated member of lha SMD Group far the year ended 2017, As part of lhe acquisition, SMD Cleseco
Ltd issued dividends of 103,127 lo its new parent, Specialist Machine Developmanls (SMD) Lid, such that
Lhe vaius of investmenl in SMD Claseco LId recognised al acquisition was nil, This was with the overall
purpose af winding up the sffnirs of the company and on 16 January 2018 SMU) Closeco Lid was officially
dissalved. Tha Group hald aa éifier Joinl venlures and hence no investrmaiy by lhe year ended 2017,

(b) Subsidiaries

Company 3
Al 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 049,500,000

During Ihe year there was a rearganisation wilhin the SMD Group resulling in the Company acquiring ths
entire shareholding of Soil Machine Dynemics USA LLG and Soll Machine Dynamics Singapare Pte Lid as
wall as 99% of the shareholding in SMD do Brasil Lida (the ramaining 1% Is owned by a subsidiary) at book
value, Enil,

A5 pant of the reomganisstion  decision wirs ity 4o wind up the holding companing Specalist Machine

(irvenstmiant) Lid and Bywall Haldings L\d in addtion to the joinl MhresﬁaMNm
abeva. As the vilus of invesimant in tha hakding codmpanies and joint ventures wan nll, the carrying value
of investments held by lhe company remained unchanged by the year end. By January 2018 both the
holding companies and joinl vaniures were dissolved.

Delails of inveslmenls in which the Company holds 20% or mora of tha nominal value of any class of share
capilal, including indirect investments, at he year ended 31 Dacembar 2017 are es follows:

Nama of company Country of Holding Proportion Nature of business
incorporalion of righta
held

Soil Machine Dynamics Limlled United KIngdom  Qrdinary 100% Subsea Engineering
SMD Offshore Support Limiled Unlted Kingdom  Ordinary 100% Subsea Englneering

SMD Robotics Limited United Kingdom  Qrdinary 100% Subsea Englneering
Soil Machine Dynamics USALLC ~ USA Ordinary 100% Subsea Englneering
Soil Machina Dynamics Singapore . " .

Pte Limited Singapore Ordinary 100% Subsea Englnearing
SMD do Brasil Ltda Brazl Ordinary 99% Subsea Engineering

Specialist Machine Developmenis
(IAvantmant) Limited United Kingdom ~ Ordinary 100% Dissolvad In 2018

*Bywall Holdings Limited United Kingdom ~ Ordinary ~ 100% Dissolvad In 2018
*SMD Closaco Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100% Dissalved in 2018
*SMD dao Brasil Ltda Brazil Ordinary 1% Subsea Engineering

* held by subsidary

All entities have the registered office of Turbinia Works, Davy Bank, Wallsend, Tyne and Wear olher than
Lhe following;

= Soil Machine Dynamlcs USA LLC al 21811 Kaly Freeway Suile U111, Katy, |exas, /743U, US
*  Soil Machine Dynamics Singapore Pte Limiled at 33 Ubl Avenue 3, #01-59 Verlex, Singapore; and
» SMD do Brasil Lida al Rua da Quitanda n.86 — 2 floor, Cenlro, Rio de Jansiro, Brazil

36

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

16. Financial assets and fMinancial liabilities

16.1. Financial assets

Tha Company and Group have recognlsed no inanclel aesels el the yaar's ending 31 Decermber 2017 and
20118 other then caeh and aash equivalents and lmda and other recelvables,

16.2. Fimancial flabifilfos

(a} Financiaf Habilitles: interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Group Interest rate Maturity 2017 2016

£ 4

Current Interesi-bearing loans and borrawings

Obligalions under financa lsases 11.1%  Aug2018 34,046 47,318

Suvhie ‘A’ unsocarsd [dan nobos 40%  Dec2023 2,400,000 2400000

BoE basa
Bank overdraft rato + 1.4% O demand - 10,637,252
LIBOR +

Bank laon snd acodnsutatod inlerost 1.8% Feb2018 13,042,694 -
15,478,740 12,084,570

Non-current interest-baarlng loans and

borrowings

Qbligations under finance leases 11.1%  Aug2018 34,046

Serles 'A’ unsecured loan noles 4.0%  Dec2023 60,000,000 60,000,000

Tolal nen-current interesl-bearing loans and

borrowlngs M

Total Interaat-bearing loans and borrowlngs 75,476,740 72,018,616

Bank overdraft

The bank overdraft was secured alongsida lhe bonding facility over ils assets. In November 2017 the
Group ended ils previous facllilies agreement which resulted in the bank overdrafl being repald In fuil.

Bank foan

The G @ tirvedvng cradit lacsty of £13,000,000,

uphchn M Mmaommrn:hn Thin lnnﬂycwh mezmammmu Group haw eptod 1o
with Citibank E: on o moniily basis

Obligations under finance leases

The Group acquired £139,818 fixed asset addilions under finance leases in 2015 {2016/2017 — Enil) whera
\ha prasent value of minimum lease payments as al 31 December 2017 was £34,046 (2016 - £81,384) (sae
Note 21). The finance leases are recognised al initiel cos and subsequenlly measured al amertised cost
using the effective inleresl rate melhed,

Serles "A" unsecured loan nofes

On 1 December 2015 serles ‘A’ unsecurad loan nolas of £60,000,000 were issuad by Spscialist Machine
Davelopments {SMD) Limiled and lislad on lhe Intarnallonal Stack Exchange The losn notes were issued
lo CRRC Times Eleclric {Hong Kong) Co., LId, lhe Group’s immediale parenl, and will malure on 20
November 2023, redeemable al par valus, The noles are inleres! bearing at a rale of 4 per cenl, payable
annually in arrears on 31 December; the firsl paymenl was due on 31 December 2016 and each year
thersafter unlil maturity. The loan noles were recegnised at initial cost and subssquenlly measured al
amorlised cost using lhe effective inlerest rate mathod

[Iu Other financial Nabilites

Geolip 2017 2016
T £
Financial llablllties at fair value through profil or lose
Fareign exchange forward canlracls 204,509
Tatal current - WHAR
Tolal non-current - 8,167
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Financlal instrumanta lhrough profit or loes reflecl lhe negalive change in fair valus of forelgn exchange
farward canlracls that are not in hedge butars, Inlended to raduce
Lhe level of foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchases. There wera na lorelgn exchange
forward conlracts in existence al the yaar anded 2017,

16.3. Fair value

Managoment issessad It cash and shoe-jerm deposits, irode recolvablos, iy payablivs, bank
eetedrolts and othar cument llat=Stos appronimate thelr carmying amounls largely dus to the short-lerm
bnstrumants.

The Group hald no athar Enanciol ik b d dn m idfarent bass al the yoar
ended J01T.

16.4. Markat risk

Markel risk I8 the risk thal the fair value of futura cash flows of a financial instrument will fucluate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises thrae types of risk: interest rale risk, foraign currency
risk and price risks

10.4.1. Intarest rate rigk

The Group conslders cash flow inlerest rale risk lo b insignificant for all the loeng-term Intersst-baaring debl
obligations as thay consist of a fixed rate of Inlerest only.

The Group aiso owes shori-lemm inlerest-bearing dabl relating to a bank loan of £13,000,000 plus
accumulated Interest, which is borrowed al a flosling rale of LIBOR plus 1.8%. Howaver, as this represents
only 17% of lotal debl and it is unlikely inlarast rates W|II ially Increase in Ihe fulure, the
Group has deamed inleresl rale risk on shorl-i t-by g debt o be i

16.4.2.Forelgn currency risk

The Group has lorelgn currancy obilgations amongsl ils lrade receivables and trade payables balances and
ls exposed Lo changes In exchange rales. To menege this iha Group engages in lonaign curency lorward
conlracts ovarshurl 1erm periods, usually with a contract lenglh of one month. To minimise the Group's
exposure lo In foreign cam rakis Ihe fonward contracts are (aken oul at the time
thae obligallon arises, whar mutlip'a one momn conlracls am engaged on a rolling basis should the
obligation exceed tha forward conlract length, Howaver, due lo iming circumstancas lhere were no farward
contracls In existenca by lhe year ended 2017. The following lable demonstrates the sensilivity to a
reasonably possibla change in exchange ralas of forelgn cumency nat receivables and payables thal were
not hedged,

2017 2016
Cumency Changein  Effect on profit Effect on pre-tax  Effect on profit  Effaci on pre-tax
currency rale before tax equity) before tax) equily)
£ £ £ £
AUD 5% 3,006 3.006 (1,382} (1,382)
cAD 5% (1.789) (1,789) X .
EUR 5% 189,963 189,963 211,566 211,566
NOK 5% (1,216) (1,2186) (898) (893)
SGD 5% (5.462) (5,462) (762) (762)
usb 5% B84 (84 61,558 61,568
183818 103818 270,082 770,062
Effact on profit Effect on pre-lax  Effect on profif Effect on pro-fax
fore fax equl!y) hefora iax) Anity)
E £ £
AUD (5%} (3,006) 1,302 1,382
CAD (5%} 1,789 - -
EUR (5%) (109,963) (211,566) {211,666)
NOK (5%} 1216 898
SGD (8%) 5,462 762
u3D (6%) 684 (61,558)
(163,818) 270,052,
]
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Overall, should GBP slrenglhen agalnsl olher currencles the Group expacls lo make an exchanga loss;
canversaly the Group expects lo make an exchange galn should GBP weaken. Managemanl have
consldered (he poisntial impact of h: rales when idering cash flow forecasls and
have ensured thers Is sufficlanl working capital available.

16.4.3.Price risk

WhilsL the Group does not own commodity or eqully securttles Il Is exposad to prica risk on contracls
agreed with cusiomers when a commltment Is mada to provide goods and servicas al a flxed prics, the
cosls of which are sublect to change depending on market prices, Howsver, tha Group mitigalas lhis risk by
fixing cosls with suppllers in advance, usng conlracl clause lo use fixed foreign exchanga rales and using
lender bonds (lender bonds are ooveved in Lhe Group's facililes agreemant whers Ihe provider, Cltibank,
will pay far costs i from ing a tender i when a has been made)

16.5. Credit risk

Credll risk is the fisk Lhat a will not mael its obligalions under a financial instrumant or
customer contracl, leading to a financlal toss. The Group is expased to credi rsk from Its operating
actlvilies (primarily trade recelvables) and from financing aclivilies, including deposits with banks and
financlal inslitulions,

At 31 December 2017 the Group had recelvables {Inciuding trade, amounts recovarable an conlracts and
accrued income) of £18,753,861 from ils three largesl customars, which accounts for 59% of lotal
recaivables al lhe end of the year. Management have specifically raviewed the credit quality of (hese
cuslamers and are satisfied no impairment exists on the basis that prior la filing the accounls £11,823,799
had been pald post year and and (he csmaining balances are expacled lo be paid on schedula,

To ensure credil conlrol on all recalvables, management chase all overdue customer payments each week
and perform a monlhly impairment review on an individual customer basis. The maximum exposure la
credit risk on receivables al 31 Decamber 2017 is lhe carryng value of the Irade and other recalvables
Tigures in Nole 18. The Group also considers credil risk lo be negligible for ils cash deposits with Barclays
Bank plg, as it Is a large blue chip organisatlon that complles with regulatory capital requirements, The
maximum exposure (o credit risk on cash at 31 Decembar 2017 is the carrying value of the cash and cash
equlvalents figure In Note 19

16.6. Liquidity risk
Group

Liquidity riek is Lhe risk lhat the Group wlll encounter difficully In meeting obligalions assaclated with
financial llablllles that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset,

The Group manages its risk of sharlage of funds hrough cash flow forecasting and rellanca on a revolving
credit facility with Citibank Eurape plc. The faclllies agreament at the year ended 2017 expired in February
2018 whirrn the Sioup opled to conlinue under (ha same bomtwing arrangarmants with Clibank Eurapa plc
for a farthay 3 manit. As the Group can decide tha kmgth of ranawal (betwaan 1 and 12 months), # <an
flexibly manage its dabt with cash flow requiremente. Management are confident this flexibility, along with
ils current assels, provides the Graup with anough funds to pay all debl maturing wilhin 12 months. In tha
svenl lhe faclities agreement is breached, the Group have been provided assurance via a letler of supparl
from its parent, lhe CRRC Graup, il has access to cash reserves (o meel working capllal requirements If
necessary.

The maturity profile of Lhe Group's financial llabilitiss based on conlractual undiscounled paymenls Is as
oullined below:

On demand Less than J 3to12 1to 5 Greatar than Total
2017 months months years 5 years
£ £ £ £ £ E
Bank [oans r 13,042,894 - - - 13,042,694
Obligalions under finance
leases ° = 3538 - - 35.283
Inlerest-bearing Ioan noles 2,400,000 = 2400000 9600000 62,125,694 76,525,694
Trade and olher payables - 19,794,847 - - - 19,704,847

2,400,000 32,837,541 2,435380  GANMON 62,125,694 109,398,618
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On demand Less than 3 3to 12 110§ Graaler than Total
2016 ' months months years 5 years
E e E E £ (4
Bank overdraf 10,537,252 - - S - 10537.252
Eapariona it frnoe = . w@s 3530 . 89,956
Intemst-badring loan notes 2,400,000 = 2400000 9,600,000 64,531,506 78,931,508
Trada wrd ol ayablon - 8,536,297 - - 8,536,297
Frward conlrachs 52 @m.w 500,100 . MBATE3E
1 mm 13,810,008 12042272 10,144,481 54,531,600 114269205
Company
Tha baquidity risk »wcmumwmmbmmu it i Ine hokder-of all intorent-
131 0 . Whist the Ty tha cosh and cash
quL«n Inw Ihht!uiq o= mntmuanu:nmﬂmmm Mw-{lnd;wnhaa mnm
ils 18 1 omils
would Iherafom be apen to lha same liquidily risk.
17. Inventories
Graup 2017 2016
£ £
Raw materials 3,796,855 4,377,318
‘Work in progress 237,076 1,136,178
Finished goods 3,772,716 3,305,450

7,808,847 8,818,946

Included in Lhe figures above the Company halds a provision agalnst slock as follows:

2017 2016
£ (3
Opening stock provision 1,561,838 1,124,752
Wiitten down 766,904 698,948
Ulillsed ) (sse)
Closing stock proylsian M&_
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18, Trade and other recelvables
{a) Gurrant and non-current recelvabion
Currant Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £
Trade receivables 9,926,030 11,401,341 - -
Amaunty recoviable on cotlmcts 14,030,062 3,638,754 - -
Amounts owed by group underiakings 4,221,457 B 15,462,794 2,354,893
Prepaymenls 407,603 1,168,604 - -
Accrued income 177,612 570,200 - ]
Other raceivables 2,733,960 310,386 - -
31,578,350 17080285 15,482, 704 2.354.803

Amounts owed by related pariies (Note 26) are disclosed In amounis owed by group undertakings.

Included in (rade recaivables is a relenlion of £3.2m owed by one of tha Group's cuslomars, which for the
year ended 2017 is mora Lhan 90 days averdus (as sean in the past dus not Impalred lable furlher below).
The cuslomer has nolified Lhe Group il has had to manage its cash low carefully and will require a further
cash Injection from Iis Investors in order Lo sellle Lhis obligation; al the time of signing (he accounls in
September 2018 this balanca is slill unsetlled, Howsver, managemenl have assessad (his debt lo be
entirely racovarable on Lhe grounds (he customer has reassured the Group it will ssttle this dabtin full,
historically It has always baan successful in raising linance from s Inveslors and afler many years of
planning and investment their business is in Lhe final phase prior lo launch of operations. See Nate 16 on
credit risk of lrade receivables, which explalns how the Group managaes and measuras credil qually of
trada recalvables that ara past due not impaired.

Non-current Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
3 (3 £ E

Hire purchase receivable 50,000 100,000 = =

(b) Impairments on recelvables

All amounls owed 1o lhe Gompany are from fully owned subsidlaries in lhe SMD Group. Managemenl have
assessed the recoverability of Group debl and are fully confident this can be sefilad.

Group £

Al 1 January 2017 203,084

Written off during the year (203,084)

At 31 Dacambar 2017

All impail relale lo i that ware Indivi inad lo be impaired. In arriving at the

raceivables provision, managemen perform a review of all receivables and assessed lhe likelihood tha

carrying value can be recoverad, factoring in hoth feedback from Ihe customer and Lhe ablity for tha

cuslomer lo sellle Ihe debt. During the year the Group wrole off all bad debt brought forward, tatalling

£203,084 and recognised no new bad debl.

The ageing analysis of each class of financial assel Is as lollaws:

Trade recelvables Total Neither past P g but nof impairgd.

(excluding due nor

retontions) impaired  <30days 31-60days 61-90days 90 days
£ £ £ £ £

2017 9,926,030 1,333,230 3,666,999 1,336,704 183,987 3,405,110

2016 11.401.341 3_11227_ _4_@;494 437,956 77,249 3,482,435

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

19. Cash and cash equivalents

Group

2017 2016

£ £

Cash at bank and on hand 2,176,300 1,888,138
Bank overdrafts = {osaram)

2476300 {(A60G.114)

Cash at banks sams inleres! at floaling rales based on daily bank deposit rales. On 10" November 2017
i ovarcral and soparnlis credit [oolity with HSBC Bark pic was tarminatod. On the same date the Geoup
andirad o @ now facElies agromont with Citsank Europe pio which included a revalving crgdt facilly of
£13.000,000, 0 separto bt facility of up to £10,000,800 for the issue of laftars of credl, inthuding tonds,
with aety part of tha faciity nol cra in this form svallable to e uilsed for cush sed £2,000,000 fof fargn
Arthangn Agreoments. In- lieddion agreennn aspimd in Fum?ﬂ!ﬂm the Group has ajied 1o
ol tnchie i B0 ‘With Ciibank ] mernibily sk,
enabling the Group to ﬂexlbly manage ils debi with cash flow requlraments

20. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2017 2010 2017 2016
I E E r
Trade payables 9,688,532 1,010,207 B .
Payments received on accaunl 826,254 3,617,398 - -
Amounts owed lo group undertakings - . - 614,952
Accruals 8,196,036 3,252,126 - -
Olher laxes and social security costs. 424,430 311,947 - -
Other payables 1,162,025 G54 56 - -
20,219,277 8,848,244 = 614,952

Amounls owed to related parties (Nole 26) are disclosed in amounls owed by group undertakings,
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21. Borrowings
Current Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
L £ £ £
Bank avordralts - 10,537,252 - -
Barnk loans 13,042,694 . 13,042,694 -
Accrued interest on loan notes 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000
Finance leases 34,046 47,318

15 476 740 12,984,570 15,442,694 2,400,000 )

Non-currsnt Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
4 £ £ (2
Loan noles 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Finance leases - 34,048 - -

60,000,000 60,034,046 60,000,000 60,000,000

(a) Bank toan

2017 2016

£ £
Ravalving short-term credH facilily 13,000,000 .
Accyued Inlaresl 42,604 .

For lurther informatlon relating lo the bank loan please see Nota 18.

(b) Loan notes

2017 2016

E £
Bedits A losn ubnetuted doles 60,000,000 60,000,000
Accront infarms! on koan nolok 2,400,000 2,400,000

,000 62,400,000

On 1 Decembar 2015 serles ‘A’ unsecured loan notes of £60,000,000 were issuad by Specialist Machine
Developments (SMD) Limited and listed on the Intarnallonal Stock Exchange, Tha lean notes ware Issued
to CRRC and will malure on 20 Novamber 2023, redeemable al par value. The notes are Inleresl bearing al
arale of 4 per cenl, payable annually in arrears on 31 December and conducled al ams’ lenglh, The nolas
are unsecured obligations of (ha SMD Graup and ara payabls solaly from the asssls, whether presanl or
fulure from lhe Group.

(c) Finance leases
2017 2016
Miniem - Frasont value Afinimum Frasen! valug
paymenis  of payments paymenis  of payments
£ L £ (4

Wilhin one year 35,383 34,046 53,575 47,318
ARne one year bt not mose than fee yean - - 35,383 34,046
Tolal minimum lease payments 35,383 34,046 B8,958 81,384
Less amaunis financa ¢harges. (1,337 - (7.594) -
Prasenl value of minimum lease paymenls 34,040 o] 1304 A1
i @3
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22, Provisions

Group Warranty Supplier  Dilapidations Total
provision provision provision

E £ £
ALY Jasuary 2017 848,477 72,270 43,738 964,486
Chiga for tha year 487,851 800,000 874 1,280,725
Ultiasel dharlong Ihis yeisr (366,237) {35,000) . {401,237)
Fataazad In tha yoar [#69,260 = . (449,260)
ALY Dwcarmbiar 2017 480,822 837,270 44,613 1,362,705

AL 31 Dacember 2017

Current 18,411 837,270 . 855,681
Non-current 462411 - 44,613 507,024
At 1 January 2017

Current 22,901 72,270 - 95,171
Non-current 825,676 - 43,739 868,315

Waranty cover is typically provided for one (o two years and covers machine and component failure where
the major uncerlainly is the liming and extent of such failures. The provision |5 calculated an the
assumplion of 1% of total revenue based on historical figures, which includes conlracts slill In progress,
The utllised provision is recognised al a value of the cost of the replacement part and servicas when the
cuslomer makes a successful warranty claim and ig expecled (o be spenlin line with lhe warranty terms
provided. The Group has na obligation lo provide warranly cover for clalms (hat have been logged after the
and of the wamanty pericd.

The suppller provision relatas to a specific provision (o provida replacement paris an a contract owed lo a
customer, e costs of which are in the process of helng reclalmed by lhe Company from the supplier. As

aclual figures ware nol avallable, management have prudently eslimaled Lhe cosls lo be the origlnal value
of tha replacement parts on Ihe expectalion It Is unlikely they will exceed this amount.

The dilapidalions provislon refates Lo the present value obligalion to restore leased pramises lo its ariginal
condition at the end of the leasa term. The resloration cost is estimaled (o ba £47,000 and will be payable
whan lhe Ieasa axpires on July 2020.

23. I1ssued capltal and reserves

Shars cepital
Group and Company 2017 2016
Allotted, called up and tully pald No. & No £

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each 4,404.832,485 _ 44.04A2F5 4,404,832485 44045375

Share premium
Group and Company 2017 2016
£ £

Share premium

Nature and puiposa of rmserves

The retalned earnings resarve is tha accumulated profit or loss generated by lhe company lass any
dividends that have been issued lo Iha sharehalders of the Group. The forelgn translatlon resarve relalas lo
exchange differences arising from restating the Group’s net invesiment In its overseas subsidiary
undertakings using the closing rale melhod.

24. Pensions

The Group operales a dafined conlribution stakeholder penslon scheme under which the group conlributes
a fixed percenage of salary provided tha employee contribules a matching amaunl. As et 31 December
2017 the Group had a penzions liability of £110,927 {2016 - £90,833). A pravious defined contribution
pengion schame lo which Lhe Bywell Holdings Limiled group acted as lrusles was wound up during the
VoM.
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25. G and i
Operaling leases
Future minlmum rentala under non-cancellable operaling leases are aa follows:
Graup - 2017 2016
£ E
Operaling leases which expire:
Within one year 508,198 503,350
Afer one year but nol mora than five years 1,014,051 1,241,857
Over five years 1,267,855 1,464,876

2,760,104 3,209,883

Finance leasas

The Group has fnanclal lease obligalions of £34,046 as at 31 December 2017 (2016 - £81,364). See Note
21 for further disclosures.

Capital axpunditure comnitmnents

Group 2017 2016
£ £

Capilal expanditure commilmants - 232,578

Contingent liabilities

Group 2017 2016
£ £

Guaranless (honding} ABETA10 9,174,345

At the year ended 2017 lhe Group was perty to guarantees which Include financlal penalties should the
Group fail to provide goads and services Lhat meel specified performance obligalions (performance
guarantess} and Lhe retum of cuslomer paymenls mads upfronl should lhe Group withdraw from a canlracl
{advance payment To secure lhese the Group enlered into bonding amrangemenls
with ils bank as parl of the facililies agreement (Nole 19), where the bank will sefile thase guaranteas
should they materialise before reclaiming Lhis back from (ha Group.

Management madae an assessment on lhe likelihood of these obllgalions arising, considering he cument
and forecasled fulure parformanca of ils products and Ihe Group's abilily to compty with (ha specific
condilions, The assessmenl deemed this le be remote, thereflore he guaranlees ara disclosed as a
conlingent [labliity onty.

Specialist Machine Developments (SMD) Limited

26.

Related party transactions

The following disclosures provide the lolal amount of lrangactions Lhal have been enlered inlo wilh ralated
parlies, separated for lhe Group and Company. The lransaclions have been classified as sither lrading,
4 ki

ding or of key parsonnal
26.1. Group
Trading Sale of goods/services Balance owed (to)from
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
CRRC SMD (Shanghal) Lid
Racharged cosls 446,720 - 446,720 -
Goads sold 651,037 . e5197 .
Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co,, Ltd
Goods purchased ___19.000 - {19.000) -
Non-trading Transaction amoun! Batance awsd (to)/from
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £

Zhuzhou CRRC Times Elsclric Co., Lid
Licence fee incame 2,750,000 2,200,000 2,750,000 2,200,000
Other conlribullons 172,800 - 172,600 -

GCRRC Times Electric (Hong Konp) Ca,,
Ltd

Loan nobes, inteteal snd payniasts 2,400,000 203,836 (62,400,000} (62,400,000)
el coat - 1,050,000 - 350,000

of key 2017 2016

£ £
Shart-larm amplayee benefits 984,266 826,099

Post-employment penslon and medical benefils BT 7,
Total pald to key 1,003,183 853,899
Sun Lid (5MD o

During lhe yaar lhe Group soid goods of £851,937 and provided business setup support latalling £446,720
to SMD Shanghal, whose shareholding is owned by he SMD Graup's parent company CRRC Times
Eleclric (Hong Kang) Co, Lid. The selup cosls included fixed asset purchases, consultancy and travel costs
reclaimed back fram SMD Shanghai, All Iransactions remain unsetUed by (he year ended 2017, disclosed
in Note 18 receivables, amounts owed by graup undertakings and were conducted al arms' length.

Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co,, Lid (Zhuzhou)

On 15 Dacember 2015 the Graup enlered Inte an agreemant (0 license inlellectual property la Zhuzhou, the
shareholder of the SMD Group's parent company. Licence fea incama relaling to 2017 of £2,750,000 (2016
— £2,200,000) was racognised In Note 18, receivables, amounts owed by group underiakings, which has.
since been pald in 2018, Under Lhe arrangement, one furlhar paymant of £2,500,000 (nel of withholding
tax} will ba pald to the Group In relation to 2018 licence fees.

During the year the Grotyp win acquired goods of £18,00 from Zhuzhou as well as receiving £172.600

m in 2018} lo supgiort thir Group dedicating resausons towards an unglneaﬂng contokl, *Ihe X-Firize
ion®, All with Zhuzhou ware conducted at amms' lenglh

CRRC Times Electric (Hong Kong) Ce., Lid (CRRC)

On 1 December 2015 Spacialisl Machine Developments (SMD) Limiled issued unsacured loan nales of
£60,000,000 to CRRC, the Group’s parenl company, with interesl payable al 4 per cent annually,
radeemable al par value, For further informalion please see Note 21

In 2016, the Company recharged £1,400,000 to CRRC far recovery of inlegration costs incurred. Al 31
December 2018 £350,000 was slill owed by CRRC and racovered in 2017,
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27.

26.2. Company

Non-trading Transaction amount Balanca fowad tolfrom

2017 2016 2017 2016
£ E £ £

EII:.‘WG Timas Electric {Hong Kong) Co,,

Laan notos, interast and paymants 2,400,000 203,836 (62,400,000) _ (62.400,000)

Soil Machine Dynamics Limited

Capital conlribution 1,921,623 - - -

Interesi charges paid on bahalf 2,442,694 203,836 - (203,836)

Managemenl chargas 2,442 634 - - -

Spaclallst Machine Developments

{Investmant) Limited

Capital conlribution - 3,509,265 - -

Dividends recsived 134,540 . - -

Distribution received 614952 . . .

CRRC Times Electric {Hong Kong) Ca., Lid (CRRC)

0'|II 2015 sorien A" Toan notas of £00, mmwmsm-tmmn

Limiitod. 3 Insued
b CHAC and will mal a:ﬁwvmu.'mmuhnmmrmhmal
A rata of 4 por cont, hmmm:toocmw Interast of £2.400.000 rolating to 2018

payablo anmually
e putied Iy Fodvanry 2017 with 2017 indnteat of £2.400,000 posd in Fabrsany 2018, A8 bansaclions wine
conductod ol amms’ lnngth,

Sall Machine Dynamics Limited (SMD)

During the ysar the Company wrole off dabl owad by SMD of £1,921,523 recogniaed on a formal deed of
withiif, A the Uaniaction was belween two fully ownad companiss of Ihe Group, Ihe debl walver had no
impact on (be canssidated financial slatements of the Group.

In addilion, SMD paid £2,400,000 interast o CRRC and £42,694 la Cilibank Europe pic on behalf of lhe
Company during tha Tha Censpany Uhisn charged SMID manogement fees of £2 442 MM In mspact of
iy Lo odf agasnal h [nterest paid on tha Compaiy's befalf

e with SMD Wutled ot 4y fangih,

Machine { Limited
Dupelng thar ymar Spaciaist M U iy off dabd cvved by tha
nmmwdﬁllﬂummmnmdmmnlwmr cmmunm tha Gompany oo
mcaived & fnal dhvidind in 2017 from Spocinkt Machine Davalopmants {invisinyent) Limaed of
E134,540 bn rolation ia i i dn Januany 2018,
s ihuso tranadcions wern between two Tully swned compunios of e Group, the dobl wahver and dividens

had no Impact on the consolldated Ananclal statnments of tha Group. Both transactions were conducted al
anms' length.

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking is CRRC Times Electric (Hong Kong) Ca., Lid with registered office at

Foom 1100, 11" Floor, Jubiloa Gente, 18 Femvick Siramt, Wanchal, Heng Kong, China. The ultimaits

oot undumwwmmwmhu-cam Limitad with rogistnred office at Na, 16

Waat 47 Ring Fond, Haddan Cistnct, 100034, Ching. Tha CRRC Carparation Limited i the paront

onhu Infgent i'tuun o consoldaln thesa Inandd stalormonts of which M State-cwned Asssts Supsrvision
o thy Sty <A (e Uhimesa Sialu) owns thi eajorty shamtiolding

The cansolldated finunclal slalomsnts of (he Spechilst Machie Developments (SMD) Group are held at
Lhe reghitered office, Turhinla Wedks, Davy Bank, Watkand, Tyne and Wear.
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Company statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

a0 2018
r -£
Adminislration expsnses:
Before excepllonal Hems 2447 04 2,400,000
Intercompany dabt waiver e (3500, 268 |
{mpalment of Investmenls (1230 468} |
E.H!.ﬁ&l 23349.723)
Other operaling Income 749,492 -
Operating profii{ioes) 3,192,188 (2,339,733)
Finance costs RA42694) (2,400,000}
Profit{loss} before tax 749,492 (4,739, 733)
Tax 12324
Profil/{loas) for the year 7!1)“9 {4 T30.733) ml

A amounty relace 10 coninuing activilian.

Durlerg tho yedr, s Compiny mcognised infarast coats of £2,442,604 in Mo your (2016 - £2,400,000) the
wnat majorily of which nalsts b Whe foan rotes borrowed fram cnmﬁmnEmmmmLm In
rﬁaﬂoﬂhﬂnl.mnl’.‘mmmn chargn on Sail Lisnited af
£2,442,684 as a finance levy,

In addillon, e Company recognisud athir ingome of £740,492 In respect of dividends mcanved of
£134,540 and u waiver ol E014,55 debl owerd by the Campany, both with Sporiallst Muchno.
Developmenta (lnvastment) Limited







